_\‘% 4] Participants:
@@j’,v’i};'&? Benicia Unified School District
o /L f ﬁ)"'*‘; Dixon Unified School District
’\é\’ﬁ V) Fairfield-Suisun Unified School District
@¥ n/f‘o Solano County Travis Unified School District
RS q‘.’" ” & . . . e . .
@‘ SpeC|aI Education Local Plan Area Vacaville Unified School District

Solano County Office of Education

SELPA Governance and Finance Committee
Wednesday, October 15, 2025
9:00 - 11:00 a.m.
SCOE — Waterman Conference Room
5100 Business Center Drive
Fairfield, CA 94534

1. Call to Order & Roll Call Action

2. Approve Agenda Action

3. Approve Governance and Finance Committee Meeting Minutes from September 17, 2025 Action
4. Public Comment
Members of the public wishing to address any item listed on the agenda are asked to submit a Request
to Speak form to the Assistant Superintendent of the SELPA at the opening of the meeting. Speakers
are requested to limit their comments to three (3) minutes. Public comments will be limited to a combined
total of 15 minutes.

5. SELPA Reports

5.1. Nonpublic School (NPS) Expenditure Update Information
5.2. Mental Health as a Related Service (MHRS) Pool Update Information
5.3. Legal Pool Update Information
5.4. Legal Education Fund Update Information
5.5. Vallejo Deaf/Hard of Hearing (DHH) Budget Update Information
5.6. SELPA Funding Allocations Information
6. SELPA Business
6.1. Solano County SELPA Local Plan Section B: Governance and Administration Discussion
6.2. Vacaville USD Extensive Support Needs (ESN) Program Transfer Information

7. Governance and Finance Committee Member Requests/Iltems
7.1. Solano County SELPA Regional Programs Funding Model Options Discussion

8. Advance Planning

9. Adjournment

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, for those requiring special assistance to access SELPA public meetings, to access written
documents being discussed at the meetings, or to otherwise participate at SELPA public meetings, please contact the SELPA office at (707) 399-
4460. Notification at least 72 hours prior to the meeting will enable the SELPA to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the
meeting and to provide any required accommodations, auxiliary aids, or services.

Any writings or documents that are public records and are provided to the SELPA Governance and Finance Committee regarding an item on this
agenda will be made available for public inspection in the Solano County SELPA office located at 5100 Business Center Dr., Fairfield, CA, during
normal business hours. In addition, such writings and documents may be posted on the SELPA’s website at www.SolanoCountySELPA.net.



http://www.solanocountyselpa.net/

SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025

ltem 3
SELPA Governance and Finance Committee Return to Agenda
September 17, 2025
Minutes

1. Call to Order & Roll Call: Andrew Ownby called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.

Members Present:

Solano County SELPA: Andrew Ownby

Benicia USD: Trudy Barrington, Steve Phillips

Dixon USD: Joanne Ahola

Fairfield-Suisun USD: Stavros Gougoumis, Laneia Grindle

Solano COE: Emie Ambrose, Siobhan Dill, Michelle Henson, Becky Lentz, Clarissa Tuttle
Travis USD: Tiffany Benson, Deanna Brownlee, Ashley Hague

Vacaville USD: Kelly Burks, Karine Fickes, Aumrey Moland

2. Approval of Agenda

Move to approve agenda.

Motion Kelly Burks, second by Trudy Barrington.

Final Resolution: Motion Carries

Yes: Joanne Ahola, Trudy Barrington, Deanna Brownlee, Kelly Burks, Siobhan Dill, Stavros Gougoumis,
Laneia Grindle, Ashley Hague, Michelle Henson, Aumrey Moland, Steve Phillips

3. Approval of Governance and Finance Committee Minutes from May 14, 2025

Move to approve minutes.

Motion by Laneia Grindle, second by Steve Phillips.

Final Resolution: Motion Carries

Yes: Joanne Ahola, Trudy Barrington, Deanna Brownlee, Kelly Burks, Siobhan Dill, Stavros Gougoumis,
Laneia Grindle, Ashley Hague, Michelle Henson, Aumrey Moland, Steve Phillips

4. Public Comment — No public comment.

5. SELPA Reports
5.1. Nonpublic School (NPS) Expenditure Update — Information item. A request was made to include a note

in the report clarifying that the projected amount is based on 100% attendance, compared to the historical
actual attendance rate of 80%. A recommendation was also made for the districts to request access to the
SELPA internal NPS database to monitor and assist in potential budget adjustments.

5.2. Mental Health as a Related Service (MHRS) Pool Update — Information item.

5.3. Legal Pool Update — Information item.

5.4. Legal Education Fund Update — Information item.

5.5. Vallejo Deaf/Hard of Hearing (DHH) Budget — Information item.

5.6. SELPA Funding Allocations — Information item.

6. SELPA Business

6.1. 1. 2025-26 Independent Educational Evaluation (IEE) Cost Containment — Andrew Ownby reported
that based on the 2025 survey results, the SELPA is not recommending adjustments to the IEE Cost
Containment for the 2025-2026 school year, except for removing a cost cap on audiological services, as it was
determined that there are insufficient providers to establish cost containment in this area.

Move to recommend that the Council of Superintendents approve the 2025-2026 IEE Cost Containment as
presented.

Motion by Aumrey Moland, second by Deanna Brownlee.

Final Resolution: Motion Carries

Yes: Joanne Ahola, Trudy Barrington, Deanna Brownlee, Kelly Burks, Siobhan Dill, Stavros Gougoumis,
Laneia Grindle, Ashley Hague, Michelle Henson, Aumrey Moland, Steve Phillips

Page 1 of 2



Return to Agenda  sE| PA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 3

6.2. 2026-27 Budget Development Calendar — Andrew Ownby presented the proposed budget development
timeline with the group. A request was made to adjust the date for presenting SCOE’s Extensive Support
Needs (ESN) projected program enroliment for the subsequent school year. Andrew noted that due to the
Local Plan revision timeline and Vacaville USD’s pending program transfer, it would not be possible to delay
the item.

Move to recommend that the Council of Superintendents approve the 2026-27 Budget Development Calendar
as presented.

Motion by Aumrey Moland, second by Trudy Barrington.

Final Resolution: Motion Carries

Yes: Joanne Ahola, Trudy Barrington, Deanna Brownlee, Kelly Burks, Siobhan Dill, Stavros Gougoumis,
Laneia Grindle, Ashley Hague, Michelle Henson, Aumrey Moland, Steve Phillips

6.3. Local Plan Procedural Manual Section A: Individualized Education Program — Andrew Ownby
reported that the procedure was revised to align with the Gamut Board Policy and Administrative Regulation
6159, where appropriate. He encouraged member districts to review the changes to ensure their board policy
aligned with the revisions.

Move to recommend that the Council of Superintendents approve Section A: Individualized Education Program
as presented.

Motion by Aumrey Moland, second by Steve Phillips.

Final Resolution: Motion Carries

Yes: Joanne Ahola, Trudy Barrington, Deanna Brownlee, Kelly Burks, Siobhan Dill, Stavros Gougoumis,
Laneia Grindle, Ashley Hague, Michelle Henson, Aumrey Moland, Steve Phillips

6.4. California Children’s Services Medical Therapy Unit Lease Amendment — Andrew Ownby reported
that the Solano County SELPA contract for the facility housing the California Children’s Services Medical
Therapy Unit (CCS MTU) is set to expire on November 19, 2025. The City of Fairfield has offered to extend the
current lease for one year, with an option to purchase. He also noted that effective November 19, 2025, the
SELPA would be responsible for paying the utilities for the MTU. Andrew explained that he would present the
amendment to the COS for direction on how to proceed with the CCS MTU lease amendment.

6.5. Solano County SELPA Local Plan Section B: Governance and Administration — Andrew Ownby
reported that he was synthesizing the information provided at the joint study session on September 9, 2025,
and would present it to the Council of Superintendents at their meeting on September 25, 2025. He also noted
that he had begun tracking revisions in the Local Plan Narrative.

7. SCOE Reports
7.1. 2024-25 Special Education Year-End Financial Report — Information Item. Becky Lentz introduced the
report and highlighted the 2024-25 ending balance distribution of $1,694,281.58.

7.2. 2025-26 Transportation Budget Information — Information item.

8. Governance and Finance Committee Member Requests/ltems

8.1. Solano County SELPA Regional Programs Funding Model Options Discussion — The group
discussed Vacaville USD’s pending ESN program transfer, which resulted in the formation of a subcommittee
to develop potential funding models using the data from SCOE’s 2024-25 year-end financial reports. The
subcommittee will present the models and their cost impacts at the October 15, 2025 meeting.

9. Advance Planning — The October 15, 2025 meeting will include a continuation of the review of Local Plan
Section B: Governance and Administration, as well as a presentation of potential funding models for the ESN
programs.

10. Adjournment — The meeting adjourned at 10:49 a.m.

Minutes were submitted by Monica Hurtado and were reviewed by Andrew Ownby.

Page 2 of 2



SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025

Item 5.1

Return to Agenda

2025-2026 NPS FUND UPDATE - October 2025 Meeting

Projected as of 6/30/26

Expenditures: 25/26 Budget 10/7/2025 Projected as of 6/30/26 (78% attendance estimate)
Non-Public School (NPS): 12,204,885 1,388,769 13,195,789 10,292,715
Day Treatment: 675,259 60,475 1,065,055 830,743
Direct District Contribution:
NPS
BUSD 276,680 35,329 310,345 242,069
DUSD 1,107,628 89,771 1,271,605 991,852
FSUSD 6,126,988 709,731 7,075,563 5,518,939
TUSD 1,627,748 207,007 1,875,504 1,462,893
VUSD 3,065,841 346,932 2,662,772 2,076,962
12,204,885 1,388,769 13,195,789 10,292,715
Day Treatment
BUSD 59,181 - 74,825 58,364
DUSD 65,999 5,125 82,000 63,960
FSUSD 227,995 30,545 517,625 403,748
TUSD 153,270 15,785 237,060 184,907
VUSD 168,815 9,020 153,545 119,765
675,260 60,475 1,065,055 830,743

** Direct District Contribution is charged back to districts based on actual usage.




SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 5.2

Return to Agenda

2025-2026 MHRS POOL UPDATE - October 2025 Meeting

Fund Balance: 25/26 Budget Projected as of 6/30/26
24/25 Ending Balance - 6546 300,000 300,000

Expenditures: 24/25 Budget 10/7/2025 Projected as of 6/30/26
Residental Placements 300,000 - -

Projected Residential Placement Ending Balance: 300,000




2025-2026 Legal Pool Expenditure Breakdown by District ~ SE-PA Governance and Finance Committee 10/ :tglrioszg

Solano COllIlty SELPA Return to Agenda

Date | Vendor Invoice Amt SELPA BUSD DUSD FSUSD TUSD VUSD SCOE Balance

25-26 AB602 Contribution 110,605.00

24-25 Ending Balance 102,441.29

Total Beginning Balance 213,046.29

7/31/25  |Fagen Friedman & Fulfrost $ 6,681 | $ - $ 30.00 | § - $ 224250 | § 440850 | $ - $ - 206,365.29

8/31/25  |Fagen Friedman & Fulfrost $ 7,587 $ - $  960.00 | $ - $ 2,18550 [ § 1,249.50 [ § 3,192.08 | $ - 198,778.21

198,778.21

198,778.21

198,778.21

198,778.21

198,778.21

198,778.21

198,778.21

198,778.21

198,778.21

198,778.21

198,778.21

198,778.21

198,778.21

198,778.21

198,778.21

198,778.21

198,778.21

198,778.21

198,778.21

198,778.21

198,778.21

198,778.21

198,778.21

RS2l Rl K2l Rl Kl Rl Rl Rl Rl ozl Reel Reel Rl Ry Roey Roey Rocd Roed Recll REcl REcl Ral R REo) S8 RS RN Rocl Rovc

198,778.21

Total | $§ 14,268.08 |[ $ - $  990.00 | $ - $ 4,428.00 [ $§ 5,658.00 [$§ 3,192.08 | $ -
Percent of total expenditures: 0.00% 6.94% 0.00% 31.03% 39.65% 22.37% 0.00%

-3 -3 - s -3 -5 -
990.00 | $ - $ 442800 | $ 565800 $ 3,19208 | $ - $ 14,268.08

SELPA distribution to LEAs per 24-25 ADA%:
Total usage of pool:

Percent of pool usage: 6.94% 0.00% 31.03% 39.65% 22.37% 0.00%

TOTAL REMAINING: $ 198,778.21

10/7/2025



SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Iltem 5.4

2025-2026 Legal Education Breakdown by District - Fagen Friedman & Fulfrost (FFF) Return to Agenda

10/7/2025

Solano County SELPA
Total hours
Monthly used by Hours
Date Month Contract SELPA BUSD DUSD FSUSD TUSD VUSD SCOE month Remaining
2025-2026 Annual Cost $  39,680.00
215 Hours

7/31/25 $ 3,305.00 1.00 0.10 0.20 7.60 1.60 0.20 - 10.70 204.30

8/31/25 $ 3,350.07 4.10 2.30 1.00 0.30 2.00 0.30 - 10.00 194.30
- 194.30
- 194.30
- 194.30
- 194.30
- 194.30
- 194.30
- 194.30
- 194.30
- 194.30
- 194.30

Total | $ 6,655.07 5.10 2.40 1.20 7.90 3.60 0.50 - 20.70
Usage of hours to Date 24.64% 11.59% 5.80% 38.16% 17.39% 2.42% 0.00%




SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 5.5

Return to Agenda

2025-2026 DHH UPDATE - October 2025 Meeting

Expenditures:

25/26 Budget

Projected 6/30/26

DHH Fee for Service
DHH Students

25/26 AB602 OTT
25/26 Projected DHH Cost
Remaining Balance

$ 101,817.52 $ 90,132.96

13 11
$ 1,323,627.76 $ 1,323,627.76
$ 1,323,627.76 $ 991,462.56
$ - $ 332,165.20




SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025

. Item 5.6
2025/2026 SELPA Allocatlons Return to Agenda
10/7/2025
Revenue: IDEA IDEA Preschool AB602
Revenue $ 10,762,852 $ 351,950 $ 41,384,236
Deductions :
SCOE Direct Allocation (1,017,962) (29,394,283)
Pooled Allocations (1,095,994)
SELPA Allocation (1,776,230)
VCUSD DHH
Program (991,463)
$ 9,744,890 $ 351,950 $ 8,126,266
24/25 % of | District Allocation Proportionate District Allocation Proportionate District Allocation
Annual Total IDEA Share (transfer Preschool Share (transfer AB602
DISTRICT ADA ADA (3310) from 3310 to 3311) (3315) from 3315 to 3317) (6500)
BUSD 4,111.95 [ 9.61% 936,114 14,163 33,809 - 780,626
DUSD 2,739.84 | 6.40% 623,744 3,147 22,527 - 520,140
FSUSD 18,823.83 | 43.98% 4,285,377 20,458 154,772 - 3,573,577
TUSD 5,145.08 | 12.02% 1,171,314 15,737 42,304 - 976,759
VUSD 11,984.44 | 28.00% 2,728,342 56,654 98,538 1,075 2,275,166
Total:| 42,805.14 | 100% 9,744,890 110,159 351,950 1,075 8,126,266




SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.1

Return to Agenda

Solano County SELPA
Local Plan Narrative

Governance and Administration

5100 Business Center Drive
Fairfield, CA 94534
707-399-4460



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025

ltem 6.1.1
Selanre-County-SELPA Special-Educationtocal-PlanNarrativeSolano County Special Education Local Plan
Narrative

CONTENTS
Solano County SELPA-Special Education Local Plan NarratiVe .......cc.eeeeccuveeiiciieeccciiee e 3
A. Solano County SELPA Participating Local Educational Agencies...........ccccvvvrennnniiciniinnnnnnnnssennnnns 3
B. Governance and Administrative Structure ........cccovvviiiiiiiiiiiiii 3
B1l.  Council of Superintendents (COS)...........cccviiiiiiiiie ettt e e e aae e eans 3
B2. Governance and FInance COMMILEEE ...........ccceeei it 65
B3. Community Advisory COMMILEEE ...........ccoeiiiiiiiii et e e e rree e e sbree e 65
B4. Special FOCUS COMMIEEES..........cooiiiiiiiiiiie e s 7
B5. Changes in the Governance Structure or Membership..............cccocooeiiiiiiiiiiiecccee e, 87
C. Regionalized Services and Program SPecialists.....cccccerreeeriirireniirienenniirenencereennneereensseereensseeseenns 87
C1. LOCAl ASSUIANCES........ooiiiiiiciiiieiee e e ettt e e e e e et e e e e e e et e e e e e e e seaastteeeeeessaassseneeeeesennnsrnnneens 87
C2. Program SPECIAliStS ..........cooiiiiiiiiiiiie e e 98
C3. Administration of Regional Operations and Services ............c.cccccvvciiiiiniiiieiiiiee e, 9
D. Roles and Responsibilities of Participating ENtities ..........ccceeeeeecceeiiiiiiieeeeesiceenreneeeennnssseenns 1718
D1. Administrative UNit.............oooiiiiiiiiiiie e s e s e ee e s 1748
D2.  Local EAUCAtioNal ABENCY........c..oeiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt e e e tre e e e ebae e s eara e e e artee e e eares 1718
D3. LEA GOVErNING BOAIMS ........cccuiiiiiiiiii ettt ettt e e e e e e sar e e et e e e s naaeessnnreaean 1849
D4. LEA SUPEHNENAENTES ...t e e e e et e e e e e e nannes 1919
D5. LEA Special Education Administrators............cccoeiiiiiiiiiii e 19
E. Federal ASSUTANCES ......ccceiiiiiimmmmmiiieiiiiiiesssssissieiiiimssssssssssesiimssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss 2020

E1. Free Appropriate Public Education 20 United States Code (USC) Section (§) 1412 (a)(1)2028

E2. Full Educational Opportunity 20 USC § 1412 (a)(2)........cccceeveiereiiiecee e 2020
E3.  Child Find 20 USC § 1412 (3)(3) ....vuveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeseeeeeseeseeeeeseeseeseesees s ees s ees e 2020
E4. Individualized Education Program and Individualized Family Service Plan...................... 2020
ES. Least Restrictive Environment 20 USC § 1412 (a)(5).....cccceeeeimreiiiiiieeeiiieeeccieeeeetree e eeveee e 20
E6. Procedural Safeguards 20 USC § 1412 (a)(6) ........cccvveeeevieeeiiiiee e e ceiteeeecee e e eree e e 2021
E7. Evaluation 20 USC § 1412 (@)(7).....cecceeeiie e eee ettt stee e te e ee e st senae e saeesnneeens 20241
E8.  Confidentiality 20 USC § 1412 (@)(8).......ceeveerreerieeniienierierte ettt 2123
E9. Part C, Transition 20 USC § 1412 (@)(9).....cecvveeriieiiee ettt st 2121
E10. Private Schools 20 USC § 1412 (@)(10) .......cccoeriiiieiieee ettt e e 2121
E11l. Local Compliance Assurances 20 USC § 1412 (@)(11) .....ccccoceeevrirevieeciiee e e 2121
E12. Interagency 20 USC § 1412 (Q)(12).....cccoceeiiieeiireie e steeetee e ste e st e e eae e snae e st e e e 2124
E13. Governance 20 USC § 1412 (@)(13) .....cccoeruerieriiriinierie sttt sttt sttt s 21

1

Approved-by-€OS-5/25/2023 Pending Approval by COS

Page 1 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025

ltem 6.1.1

Selane-County-SELPA Special-Educationtocal-Plan-NarrativeSolano County Special Education Local Plan
Narrative

E14. Personnel Qualifications 20 USC § 1412 (Q)(14) ...ccuvvvvreeeiiiiiiieeeeee e e eeeaens 21
E15. Performance Goals and Indicators 20 USC § 1412 (a)(15) .......ccceevcveercreeeverereieeeee e 2122
E16. Participation in Assessments 20 USC § 1412 (Q)(16) ........cceevvuereeeiieeeeciiee e 2222
E17. Supplementation of State/Federal Funds 20 USC § 1412 (a)(17) .......c.cccvevvveevecrrecrreennnne 2222
E18. Maintenance of Effort 20 USC § 1412 (Q)(18)......cccciurriiiiireeeiee et e 2222
E19. Public Participation 20 USC § 1412 (@)(19) .....c.eevviiiiieeiiecieeeee et 2222
E20. Rule of Construction 20 USC § 1412 (2)(20)........cceeeeereiiiereiesieeeeeecre et e e seee e 2222
E21. State Advisory Panel 20 USC § 1412 (@)(21) .....ccccvevueerrienieenieenieeseerieesieesee et 2222
E22. Suspension/Expulsion 20 USC § 1412 (Q)(22)......cccccceevieeriiereeriieiieiresresreereeveesseesseesseessns 22
E23. Access to Instructional Materials 20 USC § 1412 (a)(23) ....cooovvvvreeeiiiiieeeeee e, 22
E24. Overidentification and Disproportionality 20 USC § 1412 (2)(24).......cccocveeeevveeeeecrveeennne. 2223
E25. Prohibition on Mandatory Medicine 20 USC § 1412 (2)(25)......cccccveeeeiieeeeecireeecreee e 2223
E26. Distribution of Funds 20 USC § 1411(e),(f)(1-3) ..c.eeeoeeeiiieeee e 2323
E27. Data 20 USC § 1418 (3-d).......vuevieeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eee e ee s en e een e 2323
E28. Reading Literacy (State Board Requirement, 2/99) ...........ccccovvvveeireecreeireeireeireecreeiseenseens 2323
E29. Charter Schools (EC 56207.5 (2-C)).......ccceeiuieriiieiieiesieesteeeteeeste e ste e s e e e see e e sneeesraeenae e 2323
F. Additional Elements of the Local Plan.........coocieeeeeecciiiiiiireieeccccenssseeennnneeeeeseseeennnnsssssennes 2323
F1. Allocation Plan and Maintenance of Effort ..............c.cccoooiiiiiiiiii e 2323
F2. Monitoring the use of State and Federal Funds...................ccccoeeiiiieiciiie e, 2525
F3. ANNUAl BUBEL PIan ........c..eoiiiee ettt e e ate e e e rre e e e naeas 2525
F4. ANNUAL SEIVICE PIaN ......coooiiiiiiiee ettt e s s re e e e bee e e e 2525
F5. Programs for Early Childhood Special Education .................cccccooviiiieiiciiee e, 2525
F6. Oversight of Nonpublic School Placements...............ccccouviiiriiiiiiciee e e 2525
F7. Utilization of General Education ReSOUICES...............ccceeiieiiiiiiiiiiie e 25
F8. ACCESS 10 COre CUITICUIUM ...t et e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e aarraaeeaee s 2626
F9. Services to Incarcerated Adult Students ..............ccceeiiviiii i 2626
F10. LOW INCIAENCE FUNMS ..........ooiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt et e e tee e e e abee e e e ate e e e nree e e ennreas 2626
F11. Request for SELPA Membership by a Charter School ..............cccocoeiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee, 2626
G. Policies, Procedures, and Local AGreements.........ccccceirieeniciiinnniiniienniesniensssnienssessenssssssenenns 2727
G1. INTErageNCY ABIEEMENTS ... ..t e b be e bt s bebabsbabebaenenenenane 2727
G2. Public Addressing the Governing Body ............cccccooiviiiiiieee e 2727
G3.  Dispute ReSOIULION ..........oooiiiiiiiiie et e et e e s et re e e s eata e e e sbaeeeeanes 2727
GA.  LeBal REfEIENCES......ccocveiii ettt st e e st e e s st ee e e ssbeee s sentaeessbeaeesnee 2727
2

Approved-by-€OS-5/25/2023 Pending Approval by COS

Page 2 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.1

Selane-County-SELPA Special-Educationtocal-Plan-NarrativeSolano County Special Education Local Plan

Narrative

SOLANG COUNTY SELPA SPECLAL FRDUCAHOM LOCAL PLEAN NARRATIMESQLANO
COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN NARRATIVE

A. Solano County SELPA Participating Local Educational Agencies

The local educational agencies (LEAs) participating in the Solano County Special Education Local Plan
Area (SELPA) are all located or partially located in Solano County. The Solano County SELPA Member
LEAs include, the Solano County Office of Education, and the following LEA school districts:

e Benicia Unified School District

e Dixon Unified School District

e Fairfield-Suisun Unified School District
e Travis Unified School District

e Vacaville Unified School District

B. Governance and Administrative Structure

The Solano County SELPA is a multi-district SELPA comprised of six local education agencies: five (5) local
school districts and the Solano County Office of Education. The LEAs are joined together to provide for
the coordinated delivery of programs and services to students with special needs. The Solano County
Office of Education is the designated Responsible Local Agency (RLA) or Administrative Unit (AU) for the
Solano County SELPA. The Solano County Office of Education is considered an LEA for all purposes of this
agreement except where referred to as the AU. Member districts and the county office of education are
responsible for coordinating and implementing the local plan through regular participation in the
Council of 8Superintendents and Governance and Finance Committee meetings. Additionally, a special
education director or designee participates in each meeting of the Community Advisory CommitteeCAE.

The governance structure of the SELPA is established by agreement among the governing boards of the
member LEAs and consists of the Council of Superintendents (COS), the executive decision-making body;
the Governance and Finance Committee (GFC); and the Community Advisory Committee (CAC), both of
which serve as advisory bodies to the COS. The SELPA Assistant Superintendent may convene additional
committees. The SELPA Assistant Superintendent is responsible for the eeerdinatien-administration of
the SELPA and the implementation of the local plan. The COS, Gevernanceand-Finance-CommitteeGFC,
and CAC are public meetings providing a method by which members of the public may address
guestions or concerns to the governing body. The COS and Gevernance-and-FinanceCommitteeGFC
meetings operate under the requirements of the Ralph M. Brown Act (Brown Act). The CAC operates

under the Ralph-M-Brown-Actasmedified-by-Education Code 35147.

Bl. Council of Superintendents (COS)
The governing board of the Solano County Special Education Local Plan Area is the Council of
Superintendents (COS). The COS consists of five (5) district superintendents and the county
superintendent of schools. In recognizing the importance of each superintendent’s role in the COS, the

3
Approved-by-€OS-5/25/2023 Pending Approval by COS

Page 3 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.1

Selane-County-SELPA Special-Educationtocal-Plan-NarrativeSolano County Special Education Local Plan

Narrative

designation of alternative representatives to the COS are net-permitted only under specified
circumstances as follows:

1. when the COS member is unable to perform their duties and an acting superintendent is
appointed or

2. when a scheduling conflict will interfere with a COS member’s attendance at a specific meeting,
an alternative representative may be approved, in advance of the meeting, by the chairperson
of the COS.

The COS, with input from the Gevernranceand-Finahrece-CommitteeGFC and the CAC, provides leadership
in the development of statements of policies and procedures, goals, priorities, and plans for the
comprehensive and systematic provision of special education programs and services and recommending
their adoption by participating boards.

The primary function of the Council is to promote cooperation and communication among the districts,
and the €county Soffice of Eeducation, and to be responsive to any special education concerns;-whieh
that require inge-an executive decision by the superintendents. The COS also establishes policiesy and
guidelines in compliance with procedures set forth in this local plan for special education. The regular
meetings of the COS shall be open to the public and provide for community input. Questions or
concerns of community members may also be addressed to the Assistant Superintendent, SELPA.

A superintendent is selected as chairperson of the COS, serving a two-year term, or until replaced by
vote of the Council. A vice chairperson is also elected, who serves as chairperson inthe-eventthatif the
elected chairperson is unable to fulfill hisfhertheir duties as prescribed in this plan. Agendas for COS
meetings are developed in collaboration between the Assistant Superintendent, SELPA; the COS
chairperson; and the COS vice chairperson. Each district has one vote on the COS. Actions are approved
by a simple majority of those members present.

Specific functions of the COSeunci-of Superintendents include:

a) Employment, superviseion, and evaluateion of the Assistant Superintendent, SELPA.

i) By September 30, the COS and Assistant Superintendent, SELPA, shall establish goals for the
school year.

ii) ©n-Byernear January 31 of each year, the COS shall provide the Assistant Superintendent,
SELPA with a mid-year check-in.

iii) By June 30; of each year, the COS shall provide the Assistant Superintendent, SELPA, with an
end--of--year performance evaluation.

b) Directing the allocation and utilization of special education management, -axrd-support services,
and other resources within the local plan area, in accordance with the provisions of the local
plan.

c) Reviewing special education issues and recommending effective solutions-te-agencies.

d) Adopting executive rules, administrative regulations, and procedures for the management of
special education programs and services, including the implementation of agreements within-n

the local plan area. and-the-implementation-ofagreements

4
Approved-by-€OS-5/25/2023 Pending Approval by COS

Page 4 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.1

Selane-County-SELPA Special-Educationtocal-Plan-NarrativeSolano County Special Education Local Plan

Narrative

e) Monitoring special education programs and services with respect to both planned and actual
efforts, progress, and results.

f) Adopting guidelines and procedures for conducting special education programs and services
available through the local plan.

g) Providing executive direction to the Assistant Superintendent, SELPA ferregarding regionalized
services and to the superintendent of the AU, when appropriate, regarding the implementation,
administration, and operation of special education programs and services in accordance with
the local plan.

h) Making recommendations to thelecal-educationageneymember LEAs beard-regarding SELPA-
related issues, concerns, special education programs and services.

i) Directing that data be gatheredcollected, interpreted, and reported regarding the
implementation, administration, and operation of the local plan.

j) Reviewing data about the current status and accomplishments of special education programs
within therespectivemember distrietsLEAs.

k) Providing mutual technical assistance to the tlocal Eeducation Aagency Bdirectors, as necessary.

I)  Providing leadership for inter-district actions pertaining to the implementation, administration,
and operation of the local plan.

m) Coordinating each local education agency's portion of the special education programs and
services, in accordance with the provisions of the local plan.

n) Facilitating liaison with community resources, the local education agencies, the AU, and the

Cemrrain A ddsen s Ceraraitee(CAC).

o) Coordinating and facilitating the participation of district special education personnel, and
utilizing other available district resources for special education, in accordance with the
provisions of the local plan and decisions made by the CeuneitCOS.

p) Conducting public hearings on and approving annual service and budget program-plans. The
Assistant Superintendent, SELPA shall ensure public notice is posted; at least 15 days
noticebefore efthe hearing.

g) Receiving regular notification of all requests for due process hearings and compliance
complaints filed throughout the Special Education Local Plan Area.

r) Reviewing all IEP team recommendations requesting-private nonpublic school placements.

s) Bi-annually selecting a c€hairperson and vice chairperson and annually determining the date
and time of the regular meetings.

t) Approving SELPA budgets and expenditures for regionalized services, program specialists, and
annual entitlements and grants.

gu) Approving certificated and classified SELPA personnel actions, including hires, leaves,
resignations, and retirements.

Responsibilities of the Chair of the Council of Superintendents include:

5
Approved-by-€OS-5/25/2023 Pending Approval by COS

Page 5 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.1

Selane-County-SELPA Special-Educationtocal-Plan-NarrativeSolano County Special Education Local Plan

Narrative

a) Reviews the agenda, conducts meetings, and schedules special meetings.
b) Functions as a mediator in areas of dispute, in accordance with section G3.
c) Represents the SELPA in formal and informal meetings.

B2. Governance and Finance Committee
Policy development and implementation for the SELPA is a joint responsibility of the superintendents,
chief business officials, and administraters-efspecial education administrators of the |tocal Eeducation
Aagencies and-along with the Assistant Superintendent, SELPA. The Gevernanceand-Finanee
committeeGFC is comprised of district special education directors and business officials, the SELPA
Assistant Superintendent, -ar€-SELPA Fiscal Analyst, and the chairperson of the COS. The Gevernanece
ane-Finanee-CommitteeGFC discusses, reviews, and develops recommendations, as appropriate, for the
consideration efby the COS. The need for flexibility in this process is understood as t—Fhe goal is to
provide COS with vetted, fully informed; recommendations.

There shall be twelve (12) voting members of the Gevernanceand-FinanceCommitteeGFC; the business
official and special education director, or their designee, for each member LEA, including the county
office of education and the member districts. A quorum shall be a majority of those present.

B3. Community Advisory Committee (CAC)

Each participating district-and-the-Selano-County-Superintendent-ofSchoelslocal education agency
authorizes the SELPA to establish a Special Education Community Advisory Committee (CAC).

Annually, the echairperson of the CAC prepares a report to the CeuneilefSuperintendentsCOS detailing
summarizing the activities effrom the prior year and identifying goals for the rext-upcoming school
year. The Assistant Superintendent, SELPA provides ongoing information to the CAC. A Sspecial
Eeducation Bdirector from a member LEA serves as a liaison to the CAC.

CAC activities are designed-coordinated to inform the community, and thereby, obtain support and
involvement to the benefit of students with disabilities.

The Assistant Superintendent, SELPA serves as Ssecretary of the CAC and as liaison for the CAC to the
COSeumeileiluparintentdanss,

The Sspecial Eeducation dBirectors of the member LEAs of the SELPA shall solicit a volunteer member to
be present at each meeting.

District boards appoint members to the CAC of the Solano County SELPA from a list of selected
candidates compiled for each district. Compilation of district candidates is the responsibility of each
district's special education director or designee, with assistance from the local advisory council, where
they exist.

The eemmittee-CAC may include parents and/or legal guardians; of students with disabilities enrolled in
public school, students and adults with disabilities, regutar-general education teachers, special education
teachers, other school personnel, representatives of other public and private agencies, and persons
concerned with the needs of individuals with exceptional needs. A majority of the cemmittee-CAC is
composed of parents of students enrolled in schools participating in the local plan. A majority of these
parents are parents of individuals with exceptional needs.

6
Approved-by-€OS-5/25/2023 Pending Approval by COS

Page 6 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.1

Selane-County-SELPA Special-Educationtocal-Plan-NarrativeSolano County Special Education Local Plan

Narrative

Participating district board-appointed CAC members and COS appointed agency representatives -are the
voting members of the CAC and participate in all voting activities.

Each appointed member serves a two-year term, with half of the membership appointed on alternating
years.

The CAC:

a) Advises the SELPA Assistant Superintendent and CeuncilofSuperintendentsCOS regarding the
development, amendment, and review of the local plan.

To facilitate this process:

i) Adraft of the local pPlan is submitted to the CAC at least 30 days prior to submission to the
COS for review.

ii) The cEhairperson signs the plan on behalf of the eemmittee-CAC to indieate-confirm a 30-
day review period and compliance with the membership requirements of the CAC.

iii) The CAC forwards any recommended revisions and comments regarding the local plan, in
writing, to the respective chairs of the Special Education Council and the Council of
Superintendents for review.

b) Recommends annual priorities to be addressed by the local Pplan through a written report to
the Assistant Superintendent, SELPA .

c) Assists in parent education outreach efforts and in recruiting parents and other volunteers, who
may contribute to the implementation of the local Pplan.

d) Encourages community involvement in development and review of the local plan.
e) Supports activities on behalf of individuals with exceptional needs.
f)  Assists in parent awareness of the importance of regular school attendance.

g) Supports community involvement in the parent advisory committee established by their
respective school district, pursuant to Education Code 52063, and encourage the inclusion of
parents of individuals with exceptional needs to the extent these pupils also fall within one or
more of the definitions in Education code 42238.01.

At regular meetings of the CAC, input on the local plan is gathered from CAC members and the
community, including special and regutargeneral education teachers, and administrators selected by the
groups they represent and parents. These representatives may be members of the CAC. A summary of
the input from the CAC is shared with the COS.

B4. Special Focus Committees
The SELPA Assistant Superintendent may convene ad hoc or informal special focus advisory committees
in areas such as program development, development and revision of policies and procedures, and
interagency agreements. Each committee will meet only as long as necessary to complete a specific
purpose.

7
Approved-by-€OS-5/25/2023 Pending Approval by COS

Page 7 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.1

Selane-County-SELPA Special-Educationtocal-Plan-NarrativeSolano County Special Education Local Plan

Narrative

B5. Changes in the Governance Structure or Membership
A member of the Solano County Special Education Local Plan Area may request a change in the
governance structure of the local plan at any time. Such a request must be in the form of an agency
board resolution. The resolution must specify the change or changes requested and the reasons for the
change(s). The superintendent of the district or Solano County Superintendent of Schools requesting the
change(s) forwards the board resolution to:

a) the Solano County Superintendent of Schools,

b) participatingmember Bdistrict Ssuperintendents,
c) the Chair of the Council of Superintendents, and
d) the Assistant Superintendent, SELPA

The Counel-COS cChairperson follows procedures for conflict resolution specified in the SELPA Pelicy
aneg-Procedurales Manual. If mediation fails, the superintendents working with the Governance and

Finance Committee Special-Education-Counci-will:

a) Modify the Solano County Local Plan and
b) Notify the California State-Department of Education of the pending change in governance

Upon completion of the plan, the established procedures for local plan approval are followed. To
maintain the integrity of programs and services and to plan changes in the governance structure, the
new local plan or plans will become effective one fiscal year from June 30 of the fiscal year in which the
board resolution requesting a change was approved.

C. Regionalized Services and Program Specialists

C1. Local Assurances
As a condition of receiving funds for regionalized services and the direct instructional support of
program specialists, the SELPA assures that all regionalized operations and services listed below are
provided in accordance with the |tocal pRlan:

a) coordination of the special education local plan and the implementation of the local plan,

b) a coordinated system of identification and assessment,

c) acoordinated system of procedural safeguards,

d) acoordinated system of staff development and guardian education,

e) acoordinated system of curriculum development and alignment with the core curriculum,

f) acoordinated system of internal program review, evaluation and effectiveness of the local plan,
and implementation of a local plan accountability mechanism,

g) acoordinated system of data collection and management,

h) coordination of interagency agreements,

i) coordination of services to medical facilities,

j) coordination of services to licensed children’s institutions and foster homes,

k) preparation and transmission of required SELPA reports,

[) fiscal and logistical support of the CAC,

m) coordination of transportation services for individuals with exceptional needs,

n) coordination of career, vocational, and transition services,

o) means by which full educational opportunity is ensured,

8
Approved-by-€OS-5/25/2023 Pending Approval by COS

Page 8 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.1

Selane-County-SELPA Special-Educationtocal-Plan-NarrativeSolano County Special Education Local Plan

Narrative

p)
q)

fiscal administration and the allocation of state and federal funds, and
direct instructional support that may be provided by program specialists.

C2. Program Specialists

Program Specialist duties shall be performed by SELPA Coordinators.

SELPA Coordinator personnel requirements:

a)

b)
c)

Hhkolds a valid special education credential, clinical services credential, health services
credential, er-a school psychologist authorization or license to practice occupational therapy or
physical therapy,

Hkolds a valid administrative services authorization, and

Hhas advanced training and related experience in the education of individuals with exceptional
needs and has a specialized in-depth knowledge in one or more areas of major disabilities,
preschool disabilities, or career vocational development.

Allocation, Selection, and Supervision

For purposes of reporting under Education Code 41400 et seq., a SELPA Coordinator is considered to be
a student services employee. SELPA Coordinators are selected with input from district special education

directors,are-employed-by-the-AU- and are supervised by the Assistant Superintendent,
SELPA/designee.

Role and Function of a SELPA Coordinator

A coordinator may, as directed, perform the following tasks upon direction of supervisors or as
requested by district administration.

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)

f)

g)
h)

a)

Observe, consult with, and assist resource specialists, designated instruction and services
instructors, and special elass-education teachers.

Plan programs, coordinate curricular resources, monitor, and evaluate the effectiveness of
programs for individuals with exceptional needs.

Assist with staff development, program development, and innovation of special methods and
approaches.

Provide coordination, consultation, and program development in histhertheir areas(s) of
expertise.

Assure that students, regardless of district, have full educational opportunity.

Coordinate inter- and intra-SELPA placements and transportation of students.

Serve as liaison and consultant to other professionals, agencies, and the community.

Provide consultation to principals and administrators who operate special education programs
at their school sites, upon the request of district director.

Provide consultative services as a member of the Individualized Education Program team as
appropriate.

C3. Administration of Regional Operations and Services

Coordination of the SELPA and the implementation of the local plan:

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:

9

Approved-by-€OS-5/25/2023 Pending Approval by COS

Page 9 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.1

Selane-County-SELPA Special-Educationtocal-Plan-NarrativeSolano County Special Education Local Plan

Narrative

The Administrative Unit (AU) for the Solano County SELPA shall be responsible for functions

such as, but not limited to:

(a)  Receipt and distribution of special education funds to district accounts for the special
education programs and services, pursuant to state and federal law.

(b)  Receipt and distribution of special education funds to accounts exclusively designated
for SELPA use.

(c)  The employment of staff to support SELPA functions.

(i) Receiving, transferring, and expending funds, based upon the budget as approved
by COS.

(ii) Establishing and maintaining an office effor the Solano County SELPA.

(iii) Employment of the Assistant Superintendent, SELPA to coordinate
implementation of the local plan throughout the Solano County SELPA and with
other SELPAs, as appropriate.

(iv) Participating in funding the administrative costs of the SELPA office.

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:

The Assistant Superintendent, SELPA is a full-time employee who serves as Executive

Secretary to the COS and is a non-voting member of the CeunreiCOS. Under the direction of

the COS, the Assistant Superintendent, SELPA’s responsibilities include:

(a) Implementing regionalized services based upon annual priorities that include:
administering personnel development programs; coordinating program evaluation;
supervising data collection, information management, and reporting; supporting
curriculum development and proficiency standards; coordinating ongoing monitoring
of local plan implementation through program review; supervising and evaluating
program-specialistsSELPA staff; recruiting county and district personnel; and
conducting child-find and public awareness procedures.

(b)  Providing overall coordination of the local plan implementation through ongoing
program review.

(c)  Assisting in the development and coordinationing of master contracts with nonpublic
schools and agencies providing services to students with disabilities.

(d)  Participating in or designating appropriate personnel to participate in IEP team
meetings for students considered for placement in other local plan areas and/or
nonpublic school placements, as requested by member districts.

(e)  Providing technical assistance to local education agencies in due process and
complaint procedures.

(f) Coordinating and facilitating establishment of local plan area standards, procedures,
processes, and regulations for the implementation of the local plan.

(g) Acting as liaison between the local plan area and the California Department of
Education (CDE).

(h)  Applying for discretionary funds and other grants that become available to the SELPA.

(i) Assisting in identification of special education program and service needs for the
SELPA.

] Providing technical assistance to local education agency special education program
managersadministrators.

(k) Prepare an annual budget for the various special education resources to be submitted
to the SELRPA-Gevernance-and-Finance-CommitteeGFC, for review and input, and;te
the COS for adoption.

10
Approved-by-€OS-5/25/2023 Pending Approval by COS

Page 10 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.1

Selane-County-SELPA Special-Educationtocal-Plan-NarrativeSolano County Special Education Local Plan

Narrative

()] Recommend employment of, supervise, -evaluate and discipline SELPA personnel.

(m)  Accounting to LEAs for funds received and expended through the office, inclusive of
the regionalized services budget.

(n)  Coordinating the preparation and submission of all state mandated reports required
for the SELPA.

(o)  Resolving differences and acting as a mediator to reach consensus when differences
of opinion occur between LEA directors or superintendents.

(p)  Acting as an ex-officio member of all SELPA standing committees and appointed task
foreesspecial focus committees.

(q) Meet and consult regularly with the special education directors of member LEAs,
school districts, and the county office of education

(r) Submitting the local plan to the Solano County Superintendent of Schools for
signature, assuring coordination of the |tocal pRlans within the county, in compliance
with requirements of Education Code section 56140.

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:

Each local education agency governing board is responsible for approving the participation of

its LEA in this local plan for special education. Its support and recommendations are essential

to effective implementation and operation of the local plan.

Each member LEA is responsible te-for ensuringe a full continuum of services are available in
order to provide a free and appropriate public education to all students with disabilities for
whom they are responsible. The individual LEAs shall approve any policies and procedures
needed to implement the local plan.

b) Coordinated system of identification and assessment:

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:
The role of the RLA/AU related to the coordinated system of identification and assessment is
the same as the role of each LEA.

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:
(a)  The SELPA administrator assiststhe-eenduetefcoordinates child find activities through:
(i) Annual distribution of child find materials to local child-care facilities, private
schools, medical offices, nonprofit organizations focused on serving children, and
interested parties;
(i) staffing community events and distributing child find aetivitiesinformation;
(iii) maintaining child find information on the Solano County SELPA website; and
(iv) providing workshops on child find.
(b)  The SELPA provides technical support to LEAs and guidance to parents, as needed.

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:
Each LEA is responsible for identifying and assessing all students for whom they are
responsible including developing a system of support and referral for assessment.
c) Coordinated system of procedural safeguards:

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:

11
Approved-by-€OS-5/25/2023 Pending Approval by COS

Page 11 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.1

Selane-County-SELPA Special-Educationtocal-Plan-NarrativeSolano County Special Education Local Plan

Narrative

d)

(2)

(3)

The role of the RLA/AU related to the coordinated system of procedural safeguards is the
same as the role of each LEA.

Role of the SELPA Administrator:

The SELPA provides alternate dispute resolution services for districts and parents. The SELPA
assists parents with filing complaints with the Office of Administrative Hearings, when
requested. The SELPA also assures procedural safeguards by providing technical assistance
and guidance on forms and procedures to LEAs in the areas of assessment, identification, and
placement. The SELPA will also provide parents with a copy of their procedural safeguards
upon request and maintain a copy on the Solano County SELPA website.

Role of the individual LEAs:

The LEAs provide procedural safeguards to parents consistent with the education code, assist
parents with understanding them, and ensure that they are implemented. The LEAs assist
parents with filing complaints with the Office of Administrative Hearings, when requested.

Coordinated system of staff development and parent and guardian education:

(1)

(2)

(3)

Role of the RLA/AU:
The role of the RLA/AU related to the coordinated system of staff development and parent
and guardian education is the same as the role of each LEA.

Role of the SELPA Administrator:

The SELPA works cooperatively with Meatrix—Parents—MNetworkthe region’s family
empowerment center, a non-profit agency to provide parent and guardian education. The
SELPA administrator will provide needed training and supports- as requested, or determined
appropriate, for each LEA.

Role of the individual LEAs:

LEAs will determine their staff development and parent and guardian education programs,
based on their local needs. They may seek technical assistance or input from the SELPA at
any time.

Coordinated system of curriculum development and alignment with the core curriculum:

(1)

(2)

(3)

Role of the RLA/AU:
The role of the RLA/AU related to the coordinated system of curriculum development and
alignment with the core curriculum is the same as the role of each LEA.

Role of the SELPA Administrator:
The SELPA administrator will provide technical assistance and staff development, as
requested or determined appropriate.

Role of the individual LEAs:

LEAs adopt state-approved curriculum for students and will determine their needs for
curriculum development and ensure any specialized curriculum is in alignment with the core
curriculumybased-eontheirlocalneeds.

12

Approved-by-€OS-5/25/2023 Pending Approval by COS

Page 12 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.1

Selane-County-SELPA Special-Educationtocal-Plan-NarrativeSolano County Special Education Local Plan

Narrative

f) Coordinated system internal program review, evaluation of the effectiveness of the local plan,
and implementation of the local plan accountability system:

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:
The role of the RLA/AU related to the coordinated system of internal program review,
evaluation of the effectiveness of the local plan, and implementation of the local plan
accountability system is the same as the role of each LEA.

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:
The SELPA administrator:
(a)  ensures the COS receives annual input on the local plan from required stakeholders,
including parents of the CAC, general and special education staff and administrators,
(b)  reports monthly to the COS in a public meeting, a summary of the SELPA’s activities
on behalf of its members,

(c)  participates in meniteringactivitiesand-the development, -and-implementation, and
monitoring activities of LEA improvement plans.

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:
Individual LEAs review and monitor Annual Performance Reports, the California School
Dashboard, LEA Annual Determination Letters, and other data sources to ensure
students with disabilities receive a free and appropriate public education. Individual
LEAs also engage in monitoring activities as required by the CDE.

g) Coordinated system of data collection and management:

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:
The role of the RLA/AU related to the coordinated system of data collection and management
is the same as the role of each LEA.

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:
The SELPA administrator:
(a) approves the California Longitudinal Assessment and Pupil Data System (CALPADS)
submission of each member LEA as required by the CDE,
(b)  provides technical assistance and training to LEAs,
(c)  ensures timely collection of data for state reporting.

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:
The LEAs are responsible for data entry, quality, and integrity. The LEAs approve the CALPADS
submission as required by the CDE.

h) Coordination of interagency agreements:
(1) Role of the RLA/AU:

The role of the RLA/AU related to the coordination of interagency agreements is the same as
the role of each LEA.

13
Approved-by-€OS-5/25/2023 Pending Approval by COS

Page 13 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.1

Selane-County-SELPA Special-Educationtocal-Plan-NarrativeSolano County Special Education Local Plan

Narrative

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:
The SELPA administrator and partnering agencies annually reviews and renew interagency
agreements_ensuring alignment with state and federal laws and regulations. Interagency
agreements are renewed—annuallyapproved by the agency and SELPA Assistant
Superintendent and posted on the SELPA website.

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:
Through their representative to the COS, LEAs implement interagency agreements as
appropriate.

i) Coordination of services to medical facilities:

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:
The role of the RLA/AU related to the coordination of services to medical facilities is the same
as the role of each LEA.

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:
The SELPA administrator will facilitate the coordination of these services by the designated
LEAs.

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:

Each LEA shall be responsible for the provision of special education and related services to
students with disabilities residing in hospitals and other residential medical facilities located
within the geographical area of the LEA. Each LEA shall first consider services operated by the
LEA, nextby-the-SELRPA and-then-by-the SELRPA-centralized-andferand regionalized program
providers. If the special education services available within these entities are not appropriate,
then the district shall contract with an appropriate service provider for implementation of the
student’s IEP. These may include employees of other LEAs within the SELPA, those of a
neighboring SELPA, or a Nonpublic Agency (NPA).

j)  Coordination of services to licensed children's institutions (LCls) and foster family homes:

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:
The role of the RLA/AU related to the coordination of services to LCls and foster family homes
is the same as the role of each LEA.

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:
The SELPA administrator facilitates the coordination of these services by the designated LEAs.

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:
Each LEA shall be responsible for the provision of special education and related services to
students with disabilities residing in LCls and foster homes located within the geographical
area of the LEA. Each LEA shall first consider services operated by the LEA and then by SELPA
centralized and/or regionalized providers. If the special education services available within
the entities are not appropriate, then the district shall contract with an appropriate NPA
service provider for implementation of the pupil's IEP.

14
Approved-by-€OS-5/25/2023 Pending Approval by COS

Page 14 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.1

Selane-County-SELPA Special-Educationtocal-Plan-NarrativeSolano County Special Education Local Plan

Narrative

k) Preparation and transmission of required special education local plan area reports:

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:
The role of the RLA/AU related to the preparation and transmission of required special
education local plan area reports is the same as the role of each LEA.

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:
The SELPA administrator will ensure timely transmission of required reports and provide
technical assistance to LEAs in completing those reports.

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:
Individual LEAs will maintain accurate records and submit required data for the SELPA to
submit timely reports.

[) Fiscal and logistical support of the CAC:

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:
The role of the RLA/AU related to the fiscal and logistical support of the CAC is the same as
the role of each LEA.

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:
The SELPA administrator:
(a)  provides logistical support to the CAC, and
(b)  ensures the local plan is reviewed by the CAC

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:
Voting members are appointed by local governing boards to the CAC.

m) Coordination of transportation services for individuals with exceptional needs:

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:
The responsibility for coordination of transportation is not the responsibility of the RLA/AU.
If the RLA/AU provides transportation, it is unrelated to the role of that LEA as the RLA/AU.

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:
The SELPA will provide technical assistance as requested.

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:
Individual LEAs ensure that appropriate transportation services are provided for students with
disabilities as specified in their individualized education program. The Solano COE provides
transportation, to the extent possible, for students attending programs outside of the
geographic boundaries of the SELPA. In the event the Solano COE does not provide
transportation, the responsibility for transportation is assigned to the District of Special
Education Accountability (DSEA).

n) Coordination of career and vocational education and transition services:

15
Approved-by-€OS-5/25/2023 Pending Approval by COS

Page 15 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.1

Selane-County-SELPA Special-Educationtocal-Plan-NarrativeSolano County Special Education Local Plan

Narrative

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:
The role of the RLA/AU related to the coordination of career and vocational education and
transition services is the same as the role of each LEA.

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:
The SELPA administrator will provide technical assistance and staff development as needed.

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:
Each LEA will provide appropriate career and vocational education and transition services as
required under state and federal law.

o) Assurance of full educational opportunity:

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:
The role of the RLA/AU related to the assurance of full educational opportunity is the same
as the role of each LEA.

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:
Through approval of the Annual Services Plan, the SELPA will ensure that the full continuum
of services is available. The SELPA monitors compliance reviews and assists, as requested, in
the development of corrective action plans. Additionally, professional development and
technical assistance areis provided to LEAs and nonpublic schools.

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:

The individual LEAs:

(a)  monitor student’s IEP to ensure that all services documented are provided, without
delay, and at no cost to the parent;

(b)  regularly review and monitor special education data to ensure services and annual
and triennial IEPs are implemented and reviewed per mandated timeframes, and

(c)  through the IEP process, review the special education services provided to students to
ensure adequate yearly progress is occurring.

p) Fiscal administration and the allocation of state and federal funds pursuant to EC Section
56836.01—The SELPA Administrator's responsibility for the fiscal administration of the annual
budget plan; the allocation of state and federal funds; and the reporting and accounting of special
education funding.

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:
The role of the RLA/AU, in coordination with the SELPA, is responsible for receiving and
distributing state and federal funds to individual LEAs in accordance with the adopted budget.

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:
The SELPA administrator will facilitate the distribution of funds in accordance tewith the
funding allocation plan approved by the COS. The SELPA Administrator also ensures the
development of the Annual Budget Plan.

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:

16
Approved-by-€OS-5/25/2023 Pending Approval by COS

Page 16 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.1

Selane-County-SELPA Special-Educationtocal-Plan-NarrativeSolano County Special Education Local Plan

Narrative

Individual LEAs determine and approve the allocation of state and federal funds. Each LEA
timely submits required fiscal reports to the SELPA for required by state and federal reporting.

g) Direct instructional program support that may be provided by program specialists in accordance
with EC Section 56368:

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:
The role of the RLA/AU related to direct instructional program support that may be provided
by program specialists is the same as the role of each LEA.

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:

The SELPA Administrator:

(a)  coordinates and provides staff development and training for general and special
education administrators and staff,

(b)  develops and disseminates forms, policies, and procedures throughout the SELPA,
and

(c)  assists in preparation, implementation, and follow-up of state reviews, including
those that are part of the Compliance and Improvement Monitoring (CIM) process.

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:

Individual LEAs are responsible for:

(a)  planning, directing, coordinating, and evaluating instructional programs

(b) identifying needs and developing short and long-range plans for staff development,
curriculum development, and program effectiveness.

(c) providing staff development and training for general and special education
administrators and staff.

(d)  developing and disseminating forms, policies, and procedures consistent with LEA
policies.

(e) representing the LEA on committees as directed.

(f) assuring appropriate coordination of general and special education instructional
resources for students.

(g)  providing support to the LEA in the area of positive behavior intervention.

(h)  assisting in the preparation, implementation, and follow-up of reviews by the state
including those that are part of the Compliance and Improvement Monitoring (CIM)
process.

D. Roles and Responsibilities of Participating Entities

D1. Administrative Unit
Participating gistrietsLEAs, through the Council of Superintendents, designates the AU for the SELPA.
The Solano County Office of Education (SCOE) is the AU, as designated by the participating districts in
the Local Plan for Special Education in Solano County. SCOE functions as a |Local eEducation aAgency
and has status equal to other [Local eEducation aAgency district program operations.

D2. Local Educational Agency
The local boards are responsible for the approval of district budgets, hiring of personnel for their
districts, and setting policy. Each memberunit-district prepares its own budget and is responsible for the

17
Approved-by-€OS-5/25/2023 Pending Approval by COS

Page 17 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.1

Selane-County-SELPA Special-Educationtocal-Plan-NarrativeSolano County Special Education Local Plan

Narrative

hiring of district personnel. The County Board of Education is responsible for approval of the County
Superintendent’s budget. The Solano County Superintendent of Schools is responsible for the hiring of
County Office of Education personnel and setting Solano County Office of Education policy. In
consultation with the Governance and Finance Committee, the Assistant Superintendent, SELPA

develops the regionatservicesand-program-speciatistSELPA budgets, and the Council of Superintendents
reviews, amends, and approves the budget. makesafinalrecommendationtothe Board of Educationof

theresponsiblefiscal-agency:

Each district board approves programs to be operated within its jurisdiction. The Solano County Office
of Education establishes and maintains special education programs and services that are most
effectively provided by the Superintendent's office, as determined by the COS and as specified in the
annual budget and service plans. The Office of the County Superintendent functions as an LEA and has
status equal to other LEA district program operations.

Each district board appoints members to the CAC.

Board policy of each LEA member of the Solano County SELPA Local Plan shall indicate that the LEA is
responsible for educating students with disabilities in the least restrictive environment. Students with
disabilities are served in their home districts whenever the needs identified in the individualized
education program can be met in the home district. However, it is recognized that some students with
disabilities have unique educational needs that cannot be met in their home districts. Because of such
identified unique needs, some students receive services from other districts or the Solano County Office
of Education. The local plan serves as the contractual agreement for students with disabilities placed in
regional programs. LEA responsibilities include:

a) Coordinating and conducting child find activities.

b) Developing and providing programs and services for all eligible students residing in the district
and for students at private schools located in the district.

c) Identifying and serving students in medical, foster, or LCl facilities.

d) Participating in state/district-wide assessments.

e) Operating all special education programs and services in accordance with state and federal laws
and regulations.

f) Responding to compliance and due process complaints and implementing the decisions of
compliance investigations or due process hearings.

g) Utilizing the same management information system, forms, procedures and guidelines as all
other districts within the SELPA.

h) Collecting and completing state and federal report requirements; including California
Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System (CALPADS) reports and compliance reviews.

D3. LEA Governing Boards
The local governing boards of member school districts and the Solano County Superintendent of Schools
responsibilities include:

a) Adoption of policies and procedures for special education programs and services within their
districts.

18
Approved-by-€OS-5/25/2023 Pending Approval by COS

Page 18 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.1

Selane-County-SELPA Special-Educationtocal-Plan-NarrativeSolano County Special Education Local Plan

Narrative

b) LEA compliance with all elements of the local plan.
c) Input on SELPA policies and procedures through the superintendent of the LEA.

d) Appointment of individuals to the CAC.

D4. LEA Superintendents
The district superintendents are responsible to their respective Boards of Education. The district
superintendents and county superintendent of schools participate-serve on the Council of

Superintendents and assist in the development and approval of policies for the operation of the Special
Educationtocal-PlanArea-Solano County SELPA.

Local superintendents are responsible for preparing their district’s-special education budgets and for the
operation of programs and services within their districts, as well as maintenance and operation of the
facilities housing special education programs and services.

Responsibilities of the LEA {County/Bistrict}-sSuperintendent in the implementation of the plan include
the following:

a) appoint administrators to represent the LEA and serve on SELPA organized committees;

b) advising their respective agencies on policy development;

c) collecting information on program operations and reporting that information to the Assistant
Superintendent, SELPA;

d) designate an individual to participateing in the recruiting, screening, and interviewing process
for SELPA staff who have a local plan area function;

e) managing and operating LEA programs and services;

f) providing mutual technical assistance in due process and complaint procedures;

g) participating in establishing local plan area standards, procedures, and processes for
implementation of the local plan; and

h) assisting in the identification of special education program and service needs for the SELPA.

Each LEA shares in a cooperative effort to provide for the special education needs of all students with
disabilities within this SELPA.

D5. LEA Special Education Administrators
The directors ferof special education are responsible for the primary operation of programs and
services associated with special education within their respective distrietsLEAs. They provide for
assessment, instructional planning, placement, and review of students through IEP teams. They ensure
that all eligible students have entry into special education programs as well as exit from programs within
their geographic or program responsibility areas.

The directors assess the need for professional learning, special education program development, -and
regional programs. The administrators facilitate the collection and aggregation of data by providing
accurate and timely information to the local plan area regarding student assessment, placement,

identifying data, student movement, and progress. taaddition,-theadministratorsparticipateininrternat
localplanarea:

19
Approved-by-€OS-5/25/2023 Pending Approval by COS

Page 19 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.1

Selane-County-SELPA Special-Educationtocal-Plan-NarrativeSolano County Special Education Local Plan

Narrative

E. Federal Assurances

E1l. Free Appropriate Public Education 20 United States Code (USC) Section (§)
1412 (a)(1)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that a free appropriate public education is available to all
children residing in the LEA between the ages of three through 21 inclusive, including students with
disabilities who have been suspended or expelled from school.

E2. Full Educational Opportunity 20 USC § 1412 (a)(2)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that all pupils with disabilities have access to educational
programs, nonacademic programs, and services available to non-disabled pupils.

E3. Child Find 20 USC & 1412 (a)(3)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that all children with disabilities residing in the State,
including children with disabilities who are homeless or are wards of the State and children attending
private schools, regardless of the severity of their disabilities, and who are in need of special education
and related services are identified, located and evaluated. A practical method is developed and
implemented to determine which students with disabilities are currently receiving needed special
education and related services.

E4. Individualized Education Program and Individualized Family Service Plan
20 USC § 1412 (a)(4)

It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that an Individualized Education Program (IEP) or an
Individualized Family Service Plan (IFSP) is developed, reviewed and revised for each child with a
disability who requires special education and related services in order to benefit from his/her
individualized education program. It shall be the policy of this LEA that a review of an IEP will be
conducted on at least an annual basis to review a student’s progress and make appropriate revisions.

E5. Least Restrictive Environment 20 USC § 1412 (a)(5)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that to the maximum extent appropriate, children with
disabilities, including children in public or private institutions or other care facilities, are educated with
children who are not disabled. Special class, separate schooling, or other removal of a student with
disabilities from the general educational environment, occurs only when the nature or severity of the
disability of the student is such that education in general classes with the use of supplemental aids and
services cannot be achieved satisfactorily.

E6. Procedural Safeguards 20 USC § 1412 (a)(6)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that children with disabilities and their parents shall be
afforded all procedural safeguards throughout the provision of a free appropriate public education
including the identification, evaluation, and placement process.

E7. Evaluation 20 USC § 1412 (a)(7)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that a reassessment of a student with a disability shall be
conducted at least once every three years or more frequently, if appropriate.

20
Approved-by-€OS-5/25/2023 Pending Approval by COS

Page 20 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.1

Selane-County-SELPA Special-Educationtocal-Plan-NarrativeSolano County Special Education Local Plan

Narrative

ES. Confidentiality 20 USC § 1412 (a)(8)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that the confidentiality of personally identifiable data
information and records maintained by the LEA relating to children with disabilities and their parents
and families shall be protected pursuant to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA).

E9. Part C, Transition 20 USC § 1412 (a)(9)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that a transition process for a child who is participating in
Early Intervention Programs (IDEA, Part C) with an IFSP is begun prior to a toddler’s third birthday. The
transition process shall be smooth, timely and effective for the child and family.

E10. Private Schools 20 USC § 1412 (a)(10)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA to assure that children with disabilities voluntarily enrolled
by their parents in private schools shall receive appropriate special education and related services
pursuant to LEA coordinated procedures. The proportionate amount of federal funds will be allocated
for the purpose of providing special education services to children with disabilities voluntarily enrolled in
private school by their parents.

E11l. Local Compliance Assurances 20 USC § 1412 (a)(11)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that the local plan shall be adopted by the appropriate
local board(s) (district/county) and is the basis for the operation and administration of special education
programs; and that the agency(ies) herein represented will meet all applicable requirements of state
and federal laws and regulations, including compliance with the Individuals with Disabilities Education
Act (IDEA), the Federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 504 of Public Law and the provisions of the
California Education Code, Part 30.

E12. Interagency 20 USC § 1412 (a)(12)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that interagency agreements or other mechanisms for
interagency coordination are in effect to ensure services required for FAPE are provided, including the
continuation of services during an interagency dispute resolution process.

E13. Governance 20 USC § 1412 (a)(13)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA to support and comply with the provisions of the
governance bodies and any necessary administrative support to implement the local plan. A final
determination that an LEA is not eligible for assistance under this part will not be made without first
affording that LEA with reasonable notice and an opportunity for a hearing through the State
Educational Agency.

E14. Personnel Qualifications 20 USC § 1412 (a)(14)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA to ensure that personnel providing special education
related services meet the highly qualified requirements as defined under federal law, including that
those personnel have the content knowledge and skills to serve children with disabilities. This policy
shall not be construed to create a right of action on behalf of an individual student for the failure of a
particular LEA staff person to be highly qualified or to prevent a parent from filing a State complaint with
the California Department of Education (CDE) about staff qualifications.

E15. Performance Goals and Indicators 20 USC § 1412 (a)(15)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA to comply with the requirements of the performance goals
and indicators developed by the CDE and provide data as required by the CDE.

21
Approved-by-€OS-5/25/2023 Pending Approval by COS

Page 21 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.1

Selane-County-SELPA Special-Educationtocal-Plan-NarrativeSolano County Special Education Local Plan

Narrative

E16. Participation in Assessments 20 USC § 1412 (a)(16)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that all students with disabilities shall participate in state
and district-wide assessment programs. The |IEP team determines how a student will access assessments
with or without accommodations, or access alternate assessments, consistent with state standards
governing such determinations.

E17. Supplementation of State/Federal Funds 20 USC § 1412 (a)(17)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA to provide assurances that funds received from Part B of
the IDEA will be expended in accordance with the applicable provisions of the IDEA; will be used to
supplement and not to supplant state, local and other Federal funds.

E18. Maintenance of Effort 20 USC § 1412 (a)(18)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that federal funds will not be used to reduce the level of
local funds and/or combined level of local and state funds expended for the education of children with
disabilities except as provided in Federal law and regulations.

E19. Public Participation 20 USC § 1412 (a)(19)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that public hearings, adequate notice of the hearings, and
an opportunity for comment available to the general public, including individuals with disabilities and
parents of children with disabilities are held prior to the adoption of any policies and/or regulations
needed to comply with Part B of the IDEA.

E20. Rule of Construction 20 USC § 1412 (a)(20)
(Federal requirement for State Education Agency only.)

E21. State Advisory Panel 20 USC § 1412 (a)(21)
(Federal requirement for State Education Agency only.)

E22. Suspension/Expulsion 20 USC § 1412 (a)(22)
The LEAs assure that data on suspension and expulsion rates will be provided in a manner prescribed by
the CDE. When indicated by data analysis, the LEA further assures that policies, procedures and
practices related to the development and implementation of the IEPs will be revised.

E23. Access to Instructional Materials 20 USC § 1412 (a)(23)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA to provide instructional materials to blind students or
other students with print disabilities in a timely manner according to the state adopted National
Instructional Materials Accessibility Standard.

E24. Overidentification and Disproportionality 20 USC § 1412 (a)(24)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA to prevent the inappropriate disproportionate
representation by race and ethnicity of students with disabilities.

E25. Prohibition on Mandatory Medicine 20 USC § 1412 (a)(25)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA to prohibit school personnel from requiring a student to
obtain a prescription for a substance covered by the Controlled Substances Act as a condition of
attending school or receiving a special education assessment and/or services.

22
Approved-by-€OS-5/25/2023 Pending Approval by COS

Page 22 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.1

Selane-County-SELPA Special-Educationtocal-Plan-NarrativeSolano County Special Education Local Plan

Narrative

E26. Distribution of Funds 20 USC § 1411(e),(f)(1-3)
(Federal requirement for State Education Agency only.)

E27. Data 20 USC § 1418 (a-d)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA to provide data or information to the CDE that may be
required by regulations.

E28. Reading Literacy (State Board Requirement, 2/99)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that in order to improve the educational results for
students with disabilities, Special Education Local Plan Areas (SELPA) local plans shall include specific
information to ensure that all students who require special education will participate in the California
Reading Initiative.

E29. Charter Schools (EC 56207.5 (a-c))
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that a request by a charter school to participate as a local
educational agency in a special education local plan area may not be treated differently from a similar
request made by a school district.

F. Additional Elements of the Local Plan

F1. Allocation Plan and Maintenance of Effort
Districts and the County Office of Education acknowledge the obligation to maintain the level of general
fund contribution towards the provision of special education services at a level equal to or greater than
of the prior year, noting the limited exceptions to maintenance of effort provided for in state and
federal law.

State Special Education Revenue and Federal Local Assistance Grant funds ;-are distributed on an
Average Daily Attendance (ADA) basis, after regionalized services are funded first. These services
include partial funding for county--operated programs, SELPA office operations, pooled funds for a
variety of purposes including, legal defense, legal education, eatastrophic-cests;-etc. All direct
allocations to districts are distributed proportionally, based on ADA. All property taxes allocated to the
SELPA are used to partially fund county--operated special education programs.

Infant Discretionary funds are allocated pursuant to applicable state and federal laws, and are used to
fund regionalized, county--operated special education programs for students with severe disabilities.

Preschool local assistance funds are also allocated pursuant to applicable state and federal laws, and are
used to fund district--operated, preschool special education programs for students with mild and
moderate disabilities.

Revenue subject to the SELPA allocation mModel ineludeincludes the following:

a) IDEA Basic Local Assistance Entitlement, Part B (RS 3310),

b) IDEA Local Preschool Grant, Part B (RS 3315)

e—IDEA Mental Health-AllocationPlan,Part B{RS3327)

&jc) IDEA Early Intervention Grants, also referred to as Part C, Early Start (RS 3385)
e}d)IDEA Preschool Staff Development, Part B, (RS 3345)

fle) IDEA Alternative Dispute Resolution (RS 3395)

23
Approved-by-€OS-5/25/2023 Pending Approval by COS

Page 23 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.1

Selane-County-SELPA Special-Educationtocal-Plan-NarrativeSolano County Special Education Local Plan

Narrative

Bg) State Special Education: Infant Discretionary Funds (RS 6515)

Age 0-3 years, Infant/Toddler Funds

Infant special education funds, including RS 3385 and RS 6515, are transferred to the Solano County
Office of Education to operate the Early Start (age 0-3 years) special education program.

Age 3-22 years, School Age Funds

After regionalized services are funded, State and Federal special education funds, including RS 3310, RS
3315, RS3327-RS 3345, RS 3395, RS 6500 and RS 6512, are allocated based upon prior year Average
Daily Attendance (ADA).

Regionalized operations and services, funded prior to distribution of revenue apportioned for 3-22-year-
old students, include:

a) Extensive Support Needs (ESN) program,
i) Funding for the ESN program includes all related services, except transportation.
ii) Revenue for the ESN program shall include:
(1) LCFF (general education funds) blended rate {as-ef2023-2024 that rate is $7.309)
generated by the pupils in the ESN program;
(2) lottery funds, based upon the January Governor's budget proposal, generated by the
pupils in the ESN program;
(3) property taxes, which are an offset to the AB 602 allocation, are used to partially fund
the ESN programs to reduce the state revenue apportioned to fund the ESN program.
These funds shall be prorated based upon enrollment to the LEAs operating the ESN;
and
(4) state and federal special education funds.
iii) LEAs operating an ESN program shall annually submit a proposed budget to the COS in
accordance with the annually approved budget development calendar.
b) SCOE-eperated-Deaf Hard-of-Hearing (DHH) program
c) SCOE--provided mental health services in the Juvenile Detention Facility
d) SELPA oOperations and sServices, as directed by the COS annually, including but not limited to:
i) the SELPA office and SELPA personnel,
ii) funds for California Children’s Services equipment, rent, and utilities
iii) special education database contract,
iv) low incidence revenue, and
v) staff development funds.
e) Pooled resources, at an amount determined annually by the COS, including but not limited to
the following:
i) Legal Education
ii) Legal Defense
iii) Residential Placement

” :

24
Approved-by-€OS-5/25/2023 Pending Approval by COS

Page 24 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.1

Selane-County-SELPA Special-Educationtocal-Plan-NarrativeSolano County Special Education Local Plan

Narrative

F2. Monitoring the use of State and Federal Funds
Each LEA is independently audited annually.

For the purpose of reviewing and submitting mandatory reports, including the Excess Cost Calculation,
Special Education Maintenance of Effort — Actual, and Special Education Maintenance of Effort - Budget,
the SELPA annually collects and aggregates LEA special education financial data. SELPA aggregates data
for federal grants, including calculation of proportionate share.

F3. Annual Budget Plan
The SELPA shall adopt an annual budget plan at a public hearing scheduled at a COS meeting in
compliance with all legal mandates. The annual budget plan shall identify expected income and
expenditures as required by state and federal laws.

F4. Annual Service Plan
The SELPA shall adopt an annual service plan at a public hearing scheduled at a COS meeting in
compliance with all legal mandates. The service plan provides an overview of the programs and services
available within the SELPA.

F5. Programs for Early Childhood Special Education
A collaborative between North Bay California Regional Center, Early Head Start, California Children’s
Services, and Warmline Family Resource Center ensures services to infants and their families.- For a
listing of programs for early childhood special education programs and services for children aged three
through five years of age, see the Annual Service Plan.

F6. Oversight of Nonpublic School Placements
Each LEA, including the Solano County SELPA, where appropriate, that contracts with a nonpublic,
nonsectarian school shall evaluate the placement of its pupil(s) in such schools on at least an annual
basis as part of the annual IEP review. The LEA representative shall review the master contract, the
individual services agreement, and the IEP to ensure that all services agreed upon and specified in the
IEP are provided.

Nonpublic, nonsectarian schools are required by the master contract and the IEP to annually evaluate
the pupil to determine if hefshe-isthey are making appropriate educational progress. The LEA
representative shall collaboratively review with the nonpublic, nonsectarian school the evaluations
conducted by the nonpublic, nonsectarian school to ensure that they were appropriate and valid for
measuring pupil progress. The LEA may choose to administer additional assessments as necessary, with
parent consent where required, to determine whether the pupil is making adequate educational
progress.

F7. Utilization of General Education Resources
Each LEA shall ensure that a pupil is referred for special educational instruction and services only after
the resources of the general education program have been considered and, as appropriate, utilized.
Such resources may include, but not be limited to, response to intervention models, student success
teams, early literacy programs, and remedial programs. The LEA shall ensure that evaluations of
children suspected of having a disability are not delayed or denied because of the implementation of
intervention strategies.

25
Approved-by-€OS-5/25/2023 Pending Approval by COS

Page 25 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.1

Selane-County-SELPA Special-Educationtocal-Plan-NarrativeSolano County Special Education Local Plan

Narrative

F8. Access to Core Curriculum
Each LEA shall ensure that students with disabilities will have access to required core curriculum,
including state--adopted core curriculum and supplementary materials.

F9. Services to Incarcerated Adult Students
Enrollment and Intake Procedures

Students who were found eligible for special education services prior to incarceration in the Solano
County Detention Center, shall be identified by the Solano County Sheriff, the adult student or the adult
student's appointed representative. Upon referral from the Solano County Sheriff, the Solano County
SELPA shall ensure the provision of special education services for incarcerated adult students inmates
who remain eligible for such services, and

a) whose parent or conservator currently resides within the Solano County SELPA's boundaries; or

b) whose parents resided within the Solano County SELPA's boundaries when the inmate
incarcerated adult student turned 18, and who remain residents of the SELPA.

Responsible Agency

It shall be the responsibility of the DSEA to provide services to the identified individual in the Solano
County Detention Center, or the SCOE, on behalf of the responsible district, may provide services at the
Solano County Detention Center. If the Solano SELPA is not the responsible SELPA for an incarcerated
adult student inmate-identified by the Sheriff, the Solano SELPA shall make every effort to identify and
contact the responsible district/SELPA.

F10. Low Incidence Funds
Funds for low incidence equipment, materials, and supplies as well as for low incidence services are
restricted-intended to support-ef students in the following disability categories: hard-of-hearing, deaf,
visual disability, severely orthopedically impaired, and deaf-blind. The funds are administered through
the Solano County SELPA as specified in the Solano County SELPA Procedural Manual and include receipt

of funds, expenditure of funds, mainrtenance-efaninventery-and development of procedures for
exchange of equipment;anrd-reporting-te-thestate.

F11. Request for SELPA Membership by a Charter School
A request by a charter school to participate as an LEA in the Solano County SELPA will not be treated
differently from a similar request made by a school district. Procedures related to charter school
participation in the Solano County Local Plan are specified in the Solano County SELPA Procedural
Manual.

In reviewing and approving a request by a charter school to participate as a local educational agency in a
special education local plan area, the following requirements shall apply:

a) The special education local plan area shall comply with Section 56140.

b) The charter school shall participate in state and federal funding for special education and the
allocation plan developed pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 56195.7 or Section 56836.05 in
the same manner as other local educational agencies of the special education local plan area.

c) The charter school shall participate in governance of the special education local plan area in the
same manner as other local educational agencies of the special education local plan area.

26
Approved-by-€OS-5/25/2023 Pending Approval by COS

Page 26 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.1

Selane-County-SELPA Special-Educationtocal-Plan-NarrativeSolano County Special Education Local Plan

Narrative

G. Policies, Procedures, and Local Agreements

SELPA policies, procedures, and local agreements necessary to support the implementation of the local
plan, and as required by legal mandates, have been developed and are available upon request. These
documents are available on the Solano SELPA website.

G1. Interagency Agreements
Interagency agreements necessary to support the implementation of the local plan, and as required by
legal mandates, have been developed with the following agencies:

a) Solano County Health & Human Services/California Children’s Services

b) North Bay Regional Center — Part C

c) North Bay Regional Center — Part B

d) Matrix Parent Network

e) Child Start, Inc.

f)  Multi-SELPA Agreement to operate programs for students who are Deaf / Hard-of-Hearing

G2. Public Addressing the Governing Body
Members of the public, including parents or guardians of students with disabilities, may address
guestions or concerns, in-person at public meetings or in writing, to the governing boards of each LEA,
the Council of Superintendents, the Governance and Finance Committee and/or the Community
Advisory Committee.

G3. Dispute Resolution
The process for mediation at the COS level is as follows: The c€hairperson of the COS mediates the
differences between the participating districts. If the cChairperson is a party to the disagreement, an
impartial superintendent participates in the mediation process. When resolution cannot be reached, a
three-person panel composed of the Assistant Superintendent, SELPA; the c€hairperson of the COS; and
a special education director selected by the COS serve as the final arbitrators. If any of these individuals
are party to the disagreement, the group at large selects an impartial individual from each of these
groups.

In the event a dispute involves multiple members LEAs, rendering it not feasible or practicable to form a
mediating committee, the COS may direct the Assistant Superintendent, SELPA to engage a neutral third
party to provide the mediation.

G4. Legal References
Federal Requirements: 20 USC 1412 (a), 20 USC 1413 (a) (1), 20 USC 1413 (a) (5) 9
State Requirements: EC 56001 (f) 1, 56190-56194 6, 56195.1 (b) (c) 5, 56195.3 2, 56195.9 3, 56025 (a)
(12) 4, 56205 (b) (4) 8, 56205 (b) (5) 7, 47640-47647 10, 56195.1, 56203, 56207.5

27
Approved-by-€OS-5/25/2023 Pending Approval by COS

Page 27 of 27



SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.2

Return to Agenda

Solano County SELPA
Local Plan Narrative

Governance and Administration

5100 Business Center Drive
Fairfield, CA 94534
707-399-4460



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.2

Solano County Special Education Local Plan Narrative

CONTENTS

Solano County Special Education Local Plan Narrative...........ueeeee oottt e 3
A. Solano County SELPA Participating Local Educational AgeNncCies........ccccceeerreennerreenneerrennneeneennnens 3
B. Governance and Administrative Structure ........cccceviiiiiiiiiiiii 3
B1. Council of Superintendents (COS)...........cuiii i e e erre e e e erre e e eetaeeeenes 3
B2. Governance and Finance COMMILEEE ...........cooviiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 5
B3. Community AdVisOry COMMILEEE .........cccuviiiiiiii e e e e e e e e nenes 6
B4. SPeECial FOCUS COMMITEEES...........vviiiiiiieeiiiieee ettt eeerree e e e e e eetbree e e e e eeeaabaaeeeeeeeennrssees 7
B5. Changes in the Governance Structure or Membership.............cccccoi i, 7

C. Regionalized Services and Program Specialists.........cccuureereunceiiiirieeeeennsciiisenreeenennnsssseeeeeennsnsenes 8
C1. LOCAl ASSUFANCES.......cueeiiiiieiiie ettt ettt ettt ettt e s bt e e bt e e sbbeesateesabeeesabeesaseesabeesaneeesaneesans 8
c2. Program SPECIAlIStS ..........cooiiiiiiiiiee e e e e e et e e e eeaaeaean 8
C3. Administration of Regional Operations and Services ..............cccccevviiiiiiciiee e, 9
D. Roles and Responsibilities of Participating Entities ........cccceeeiiieuiiiiieiiciiieiiciiicccenenccnnenennens 17
D1.  AdmInistrative UNit...........cccooiiiiiiiiiie et 17
D2. Local EAUCAtioNal ABENCY.........cooiiuiiiiiiiiiie ittt sttt ettt e s s sate e e s sbee e e s sbee e e ssaraeeesanes 17
D3. LEA GOVEIrNING BOArS ...........cvviiiiiiiiiiiiieeee ettt e e e e et e e e s s e s sabtaaee e e e e senannnnees 18
D4. [T o T T =T e [=] ] £ PRSP 18
D5. LEA Special Education Administrators.............cccoccuiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e 19

E.  FEderal ASSUIANCES .......cciiiiiiiiiueeiieiiiiiiiineieteisiscisseseee e sssssssassssee e s s ssssssssssssaeesssssssssssnnneesensas 19
E1. Free Appropriate Public Education 20 United States Code (USC) Section (§) 1412 (a)(1)...19
E2. Full Educational Opportunity 20 USC § 1412 (Q)(2)......cccceeeeeuieeeeiiieeeecieee e e eeiree e ssiree e 19
E3. Child Find 20 USC § 1412 (Q)(3) ..eeveerveertieiieniienienie et eie et este et e sieesiee e st st stesbesbeeseees 19
E4. Individualized Education Program and Individualized Family Service Plan ......................... 19
ES5. Least Restrictive Environment 20 USC § 1412 (2)(5).....cccccevvrrerirercereiir e esreeetee e 20
E6. Procedural Safeguards 20 USC § 1412 (@)(6) ........cceeeeeeiiieeeiiiieeectieeeettee e ecteee e eere e e e svreee e 20
E7.  EVAluation 20 USC § 1412 (3)(7)....veveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e see s s ses e sesees s seeneeeseeees 20
ES. Confidentiality 20 USC § 1412 (@)(8).......ccceeruerriiiiiieeiieecee et eree e e ee e e s e e 20
E9. Part C, Transition 20 USC § 1412 (@)(9) ....vvvveeeiiiiiiiiriieeee ettt eeeireee e e e e e eeenanee 20
E10. Private Schools 20 USC § 1412 (a)(10) ........ccocueeiiieiiieeiieesieeeteeeteeeseteesve e et e essae e seneeenne e 20
E1l. Local Compliance Assurances 20 USC § 1412 (a)(11) .....cccceeevciiieiiiiiee e e 20
E12. Interagency 20 USC § 1412 (@)(12).....cccoeoveiieiieeieeiieeeeeereeeeeeireeeeetreeeeerreeeestreeseeareeeeenneeeens 20
E13. Governance 20 USC § 1412 (@)(13) ....ooeeeouiiiiiiiiie e eceee ettt e e e e tae e e s saee e e ata e e e nreee e 21
E14. Personnel Qualifications 20 USC § 1412 (@)(14) ....ccvvvieeiveieeeireieeiieeeeeereee e eereeeesnaee e 21

Pending Approval by COS
Page 1 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.2

Solano County Special Education Local Plan Narrative

E15. Performance Goals and Indicators 20 USC § 1412 (a)(15) .....ccceeeevevieeeecieee e, 21
E16. Participation in Assessments 20 USC § 1412 (@)(16) ......ccceeeeevreeeeirreeeiirereeeneeeeeereeeeenreeeen 21
E17. Supplementation of State/Federal Funds 20 USC § 1412 (a)(17) ...c.ccovvveeveeecreeecieeereeenne. 21
E18. Maintenance of Effort 20 USC § 1412 (a)(18).....cccccvvvriiieiiiiiiiieiieee et eeeeiiveeee e e e eeaens 21
E19. Public Participation 20 USC § 1412 (@)(19) .....c.eeviieeiiieeiiee e cee et ee e eee e sre e s e e saee e 21
E20. Rule of Construction 20 USC § 1412 (a)(20).......cccovurermieieiiiiiiieeieeeeeecrereeee e eeeeivreeeeeeeeesannns 21
E21. State Advisory Panel 20 USC § 1412 (Q)(21) ..cccvvvieeirreieiiieee et ettt eetne e eevveeeeeaneee e 21
E22. Suspension/Expulsion 20 USC § 1412 (@)(22) .....cceeeeueeeieeeeiree et eeree et eereeeevee et 22
E23. Access to Instructional Materials 20 USC § 1412 (2)(23) ...occovvveeeecneeeeiieeie e eenveeeen 22
E24. Overidentification and Disproportionality 20 USC § 1412 (a)(24).......c.cccevvvevveeecieeecreeennn. 22
E25. Prohibition on Mandatory Medicine 20 USC § 1412 (Q)(25)......cccccvvveeeiiveieeiiirreeecreeeeenneeann 22
E26. Distribution of Funds 20 USC § 1411(e),(f)(1-3) ...eeeveeeiiieeee et 22
E27. Data 20 USC § 1418 (@-d)......cccueeiuieiieiieiieiiieeie ettt ettt st s st snee b 22
E28. Reading Literacy (State Board Requirement, 2/99) ...........cccccccveviiiieneieireeire et 22
E29. Charter SChools (EC 56207.5 (Q-C))......ocooiiiiiiiiiiie ettt et e e e e aree e e aaee e 22
F. Additional Elements of the Local Plan ...........ceeeiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiiiiiiiienecneseee s 22
F1. Allocation Plan and Maintenance of Effort ................ccociiiiiiiiiiiiii e 22
F2. Monitoring the use of State and Federal Funds..................ccccoeeeiiiiiiniiie e 24
F3. ANNUAl BUABEL PIaN ..ottt e s e e e ra e e e s e e e s snreee s 24
F4. ANNUAl SErVICE PIan ..........ooiiiie e s 24
F5. Programs for Early Childhood Special Education ................cccccooiiiiiiiniiiii e, 24
F6. Oversight of Nonpublic School Placements................ccccoo oo 24
F7. Utilization of General Education ReSOUICES..............cccceeiieiieiiiiiinie e 25
F8. Access t0 Core CUITICUIUM ......o.oiiiiiiii ettt 25
F9. Services to Incarcerated Adult STUAENTS .............ccooiiiiiiiiiii i 25
F10. LOW INCIAENECE FUNMS .......ooiiiiiiiiiieieeeee ettt ettt ettt et e s e e saae e e 25
F11. Request for SELPA Membership by a Charter School ................cccccoiiiiiiiiiiccee e, 25
G. Policies, Procedures, and LOcCal AGreemENnts......cccceuueerreenerireeneereenneerrensssereensseesesnssessesnsssssenns 26
G1. INtEragenCy ABreeMIENTS ... ... e e e e e rerernrnne 26
G2. Public Addressing the Governing Body .............ccoeiiiiiiiiiciiic e e 26
G3.  Dispute ReSOIULION ..........cooiiiiiiiiiiic et e e e ee e s s bee e s s nbeeessaneeas 26
GA.  LeBAl REFEIENCES........c..eeieeeeiee ettt e et e e et e e e st e e e e et e e e e e abaeesesteeesensreeeeansees 26
2

Pending Approval by COS
Page 2 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.2

Solano County Special Education Local Plan Narrative

SOLANO COUNTY SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN NARRATIVE
A. Solano County SELPA Participating Local Educational Agencies

The local educational agencies (LEAs) participating in the Solano County Special Education Local Plan
Area (SELPA) are all located or partially located in Solano County. The Solano County SELPA Member
LEAs include, the Solano County Office of Education, and the following LEA school districts:

e Benicia Unified School District

e Dixon Unified School District

e Fairfield-Suisun Unified School District
e Travis Unified School District

e Vacaville Unified School District

B. Governance and Administrative Structure

The Solano County SELPA is a multi-district SELPA comprised of six local education agencies: five (5) local
school districts and the Solano County Office of Education. The LEAs are joined together to provide for
the coordinated delivery of programs and services to students with special needs. The Solano County
Office of Education is the designated Responsible Local Agency (RLA) or Administrative Unit (AU) for the
Solano County SELPA. The Solano County Office of Education is considered an LEA for all purposes of this
agreement except where referred to as the AU. Member districts and the county office of education are
responsible for coordinating and implementing the local plan through regular participation in the
Council of Superintendents and Governance and Finance Committee meetings. Additionally, a special
education director or designee participates in each meeting of the Community Advisory Committee.

The governance structure of the SELPA is established by agreement among the governing boards of the
member LEAs and consists of the Council of Superintendents (COS), the executive decision-making body;
the Governance and Finance Committee (GFC); and the Community Advisory Committee (CAC), both of
which serve as advisory bodies to the COS. The SELPA Assistant Superintendent may convene additional
committees. The SELPA Assistant Superintendent is responsible for the administration of the SELPA and
the implementation of the local plan. The COS, GFC, and CAC are public meetings providing a method by
which members of the public may address questions or concerns to the governing body. The COS and
GFC meetings operate under the requirements of the Ralph M. Brown Act (Brown Act). The CAC
operates under Education Code 35147.

Bl. Council of Superintendents (COS)
The governing board of the Solano County Special Education Local Plan Area is the Council of
Superintendents (COS). The COS consists of five (5) district superintendents and the county
superintendent of schools. In recognizing the importance of each superintendent’s role in the COS, the
designation of alternative representatives to the COS are permitted only under specified circumstances
as follows:

1. when the COS member is unable to perform their duties and an acting superintendent is
appointed or

3

Pending Approval by COS
Page 3 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.2

Solano County Special Education Local Plan Narrative

2. when a scheduling conflict will interfere with a COS member’s attendance at a specific meeting,
an alternative representative may be approved, in advance of the meeting, by the chairperson
of the COS.

The COS, with input from the GFC and the CAC, provides leadership in the development of statements of
policies and procedures, goals, priorities, and plans for the comprehensive and systematic provision of
special education programs and services and recommending their adoption by participating boards.

The primary function of the Council is to promote cooperation and communication among the districts,
and the county office of education, and to be responsive to any special education concerns that require
an executive decision by the superintendents. The COS also establishes policies and guidelines in
compliance with procedures set forth in this local plan for special education. The regular meetings of the
COS shall be open to the public and provide for community input. Questions or concerns of community
members may also be addressed to the Assistant Superintendent, SELPA.

A superintendent is selected as chairperson of the COS, serving a two-year term, or until replaced by
vote of the Council. A vice chairperson is also elected, who serves as chairperson if the elected
chairperson is unable to fulfill their duties as prescribed in this plan. Agendas for COS meetings are
developed in collaboration between the Assistant Superintendent, SELPA; the COS chairperson; and the
COS vice chairperson. Each district has one vote on the COS. Actions are approved by a simple majority
of those members present.

Specific functions of the COS include:

a) Employment, supervision, and evaluation of the Assistant Superintendent, SELPA.

i) By September 30, the COS and Assistant Superintendent, SELPA, shall establish goals for the
school year.

ii) By January 31 of each year, the COS shall provide the Assistant Superintendent, SELPA with
a mid-year check-in.

iii) By June 30 of each year, the COS shall provide the Assistant Superintendent, SELPA, with an
end-of-year performance evaluation.

b) Directing the allocation and utilization of special education management, support services, and
other resources within the local plan area, in accordance with the provisions of the local plan.

c) Reviewing special education issues and recommending effective solutions.

d) Adopting executive rules, administrative regulations, and procedures for the management of
special education programs and services, including the implementation of agreements within
the local plan area.

e) Monitoring special education programs and services with respect to both planned and actual
efforts, progress, and results.

f) Adopting guidelines and procedures for conducting special education programs and services
available through the local plan.

g) Providing executive direction to the Assistant Superintendent, SELPA regarding regionalized
services and to the superintendent of the AU, when appropriate, regarding the implementation,

4

Pending Approval by COS
Page 4 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.2

Solano County Special Education Local Plan Narrative

h)

j)

o)

p)

q)

administration, and operation of special education programs and services in accordance with
the local plan.

Making recommendations to member LEAs regarding SELPA-related issues, concerns, special
education programs and services.

Directing that data be collected, interpreted, and reported regarding the implementation,
administration, and operation of the local plan.

Reviewing data about the current status and accomplishments of special education programs
within member LEAs.

Providing mutual technical assistance to the local education agency directors, as necessary.

Providing leadership for inter-district actions pertaining to the implementation, administration,
and operation of the local plan.

Coordinating each local education agency's portion of the special education programs and
services, in accordance with the provisions of the local plan.

Facilitating liaison with community resources, the local education agencies, the AU, and the
(CAC).

Coordinating and facilitating the participation of district special education personnel, and
utilizing other available district resources for special education, in accordance with the
provisions of the local plan and decisions made by the COS.

Conducting public hearings on and approving annual service and budget plans. The Assistant
Superintendent, SELPA shall ensure public notice is posted at least 15 days before the hearing.

Receiving regular notification of all requests for due process hearings and compliance
complaints filed throughout the Special Education Local Plan Area.

Reviewing all IEP team recommendations requesting nonpublic school placements.

Bi-annually selecting a chairperson and vice chairperson and annually determining the date and
time of the regular meetings.

Approving SELPA budgets and expenditures for regionalized services, program specialists, and
annual entitlements and grants.

Approving certificated and classified SELPA personnel actions, including hires, leaves,
resignations, and retirements.

Responsibilities of the Chair of the Council of Superintendents include:

a)
b)

c)

Reviews the agenda, conducts meetings, and schedules special meetings.
Functions as a mediator in areas of dispute, in accordance with section G3.
Represents the SELPA in formal and informal meetings.

B2. Governance and Finance Committee

Policy development and implementation for the SELPA is a joint responsibility of the superintendents,
chief business officials, and special education administrators of the local education agencies along with
the Assistant Superintendent, SELPA. The GFC is comprised of district special education directors and

5

Pending Approval by COS

Page 5 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.2

Solano County Special Education Local Plan Narrative

business officials, the SELPA Assistant Superintendent, SELPA Fiscal Analyst, and the chairperson of the
COS. The GFC discusses, reviews, and develops recommendations, as appropriate, for consideration by
the COS. The need for flexibility in this process is understood as the goal is to provide COS with vetted,

fully informed recommendations.

There shall be twelve (12) voting members of the GFC; the business official and special education
director, or their designee, for each member LEA, including the county office of education and the
member districts. A quorum shall be a majority of those present.

B3. Community Advisory Committee (CAC)
Each participating local education agency authorizes the SELPA to establish a Special Education
Community Advisory Committee (CAC).

Annually, the chairperson of the CAC prepares a report to the COS summarizing the activities from the
prior year and identifying goals for the upcoming school year. The Assistant Superintendent, SELPA
provides ongoing information to the CAC. A special education director from a member LEA serves as a
liaison to the CAC.

CAC activities are coordinated to inform the community, and thereby, obtain support and involvement
to the benefit of students with disabilities.

The Assistant Superintendent, SELPA serves as secretary of the CAC and as liaison for the CAC to the
COs.

The special education directors of the member LEAs of the SELPA shall solicit a volunteer member to be
present at each meeting.

District boards appoint members to the CAC of the Solano County SELPA from a list of selected
candidates compiled for each district. Compilation of district candidates is the responsibility of each
district's special education director or designee, with assistance from the local advisory council, where
they exist.

The CAC may include parents and/or legal guardians of students with disabilities enrolled in public
school, students and adults with disabilities, general education teachers, special education teachers,
other school personnel, representatives of other public and private agencies, and persons concerned
with the needs of individuals with exceptional needs. A majority of the CAC is composed of parents of
students enrolled in schools participating in the local plan. A majority of these parents are parents of
individuals with exceptional needs.

Participating district board-appointed CAC members and COS appointed agency representatives are the
voting members of the CAC and participate in all voting activities.

Each appointed member serves a two-year term, with half of the membership appointed on alternating
years.

The CAC:

a) Advises the SELPA Assistant Superintendent and COS regarding the development, amendment,
and review of the local plan.

To facilitate this process:

6

Pending Approval by COS
Page 6 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.2

Solano County Special Education Local Plan Narrative

i) Adraft of the local plan is submitted to the CAC at least 30 days prior to submission to the
COS for review.

ii) The chairperson signs the plan on behalf of the CAC to confirm a 30-day review period and
compliance with the membership requirements of the CAC.

iii) The CAC forwards any recommended revisions and comments regarding the local plan, in
writing, to the respective chairs of the Special Education Council and the Council of
Superintendents for review.

b) Recommends annual priorities to be addressed by the local plan through a written report to the
Assistant Superintendent, SELPA .

c) Assists in parent education outreach efforts and in recruiting parents and other volunteers, who
may contribute to the implementation of the local plan.

d) Encourages community involvement in development and review of the local plan.
e) Supports activities on behalf of individuals with exceptional needs.
f)  Assists in parent awareness of the importance of regular school attendance.

g) Supports community involvement in the parent advisory committee established by their
respective school district, pursuant to Education Code 52063, and encourage the inclusion of
parents of individuals with exceptional needs to the extent these pupils also fall within one or
more of the definitions in Education code 42238.01.

At regular meetings of the CAC, input on the local plan is gathered from CAC members and the
community, including special and general education teachers, and administrators selected by the groups
they represent and parents. These representatives may be members of the CAC. A summary of the
input from the CAC is shared with the COS.

B4. Special Focus Committees
The SELPA Assistant Superintendent may convene ad hoc or informal special focus advisory committees
in areas such as program development, development and revision of policies and procedures, and
interagency agreements. Each committee will meet only as long as necessary to complete a specific
purpose.

B5. Changes in the Governance Structure or Membership
A member of the Solano County Special Education Local Plan Area may request a change in the
governance structure of the local plan at any time. Such a request must be in the form of an agency
board resolution. The resolution must specify the change or changes requested and the reasons for the
change(s). The superintendent of the district or Solano County Superintendent of Schools requesting the
change(s) forwards the board resolution to:

a) the Solano County Superintendent of Schools,
b) member district superintendents,

c) the Chair of the Council of Superintendents, and
d) the Assistant Superintendent, SELPA

7

Pending Approval by COS
Page 7 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.2

Solano County Special Education Local Plan Narrative

The COS chairperson follows procedures for conflict resolution specified in the SELPA Procedural
Manual. If mediation fails, the superintendents working with the Governance and Finance Committee
will:

a) Modify the Solano County Local Plan and
b) Notify the California Department of Education of the pending change in governance

Upon completion of the plan, the established procedures for local plan approval are followed. To
maintain the integrity of programs and services and to plan changes in the governance structure, the
new local plan or plans will become effective one fiscal year from June 30 of the fiscal year in which the
board resolution requesting a change was approved.

C. Regionalized Services and Program Specialists

C1. Local Assurances
As a condition of receiving funds for regionalized services and the direct instructional support of
program specialists, the SELPA assures that all regionalized operations and services listed below are
provided in accordance with the local plan:

a) coordination of the special education local plan and the implementation of the local plan,

b) a coordinated system of identification and assessment,

c) acoordinated system of procedural safeguards,

d) acoordinated system of staff development and guardian education,

e) acoordinated system of curriculum development and alignment with the core curriculum,

f) acoordinated system of internal program review, evaluation and effectiveness of the local plan,
and implementation of a local plan accountability mechanism,

g) acoordinated system of data collection and management,

h) coordination of interagency agreements,

i) coordination of services to medical facilities,

j) coordination of services to licensed children’s institutions and foster homes,

k) preparation and transmission of required SELPA reports,

[) fiscal and logistical support of the CAC,

m) coordination of transportation services for individuals with exceptional needs,

n) coordination of career, vocational, and transition services,

o) means by which full educational opportunity is ensured,

p) fiscal administration and the allocation of state and federal funds, and

g) directinstructional support that may be provided by program specialists.

c2. Program Specialists
Program Specialist duties shall be performed by SELPA Coordinators.

SELPA Coordinator personnel requirements:

a) Holds a valid special education credential, clinical services credential, health services credential,
a school psychologist authorization or license to practice occupational therapy or physical
therapy,

b) Holds a valid administrative services authorization, and

8

Pending Approval by COS
Page 8 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.2

Solano County Special Education Local Plan Narrative

c)

Has advanced training and related experience in the education of individuals with exceptional
needs and has a specialized in-depth knowledge in one or more areas of major disabilities,
preschool disabilities, or career vocational development.

Allocation, Selection, and Supervision

For purposes of reporting under Education Code 41400 et seq., a SELPA Coordinator is considered to be
a student services employee. SELPA Coordinators are selected with input from district special education
directors and are supervised by the Assistant Superintendent, SELPA/designee.

Role and Function of a SELPA Coordinator

A coordinator may, as directed, perform the following tasks upon direction of supervisors or as
requested by district administration.

a)
b)
c)

d)
e)
f)
g)
h)

Observe, consult with, and assist resource specialists, designated instruction and services
instructors, and special education teachers.

Plan programs, coordinate curricular resources, monitor, and evaluate the effectiveness of
programs for individuals with exceptional needs.

Assist with staff development, program development, and innovation of special methods and
approaches.

Provide coordination, consultation, and program development in their areas(s) of expertise.
Assure that students, regardless of district, have full educational opportunity.

Coordinate inter- and intra-SELPA placements and transportation of students.

Serve as liaison and consultant to other professionals, agencies, and the community.

Provide consultation to principals and administrators who operate special education programs
at their school sites, upon the request of district director.

Provide consultative services as a member of the Individualized Education Program team as
appropriate.

C3. Administration of Regional Operations and Services

Coordination of the SELPA and the implementation of the local plan:

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:

The Administrative Unit (AU) for the Solano County SELPA shall be responsible for functions

such as, but not limited to:

(a)  Receipt and distribution of special education funds to district accounts for the special
education programs and services, pursuant to state and federal law.

(b)  Receipt and distribution of special education funds to accounts exclusively designated
for SELPA use.

(c)  The employment of staff to support SELPA functions.

(i) Receiving, transferring, and expending funds, based upon the budget as approved
by COS.

(ii) Establishing and maintaining an office for the Solano County SELPA.

(iii) Employment of the Assistant Superintendent, SELPA to coordinate
implementation of the local plan throughout the Solano County SELPA and with
other SELPAs, as appropriate.

(iv) Participating in funding the administrative costs of the SELPA office.

9

Pending Approval by COS

Page 9 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.2

Solano County Special Education Local Plan Narrative

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:
The Assistant Superintendent, SELPA is a full-time employee who serves as Executive
Secretary to the COS and is a non-voting member of the COS. Under the direction of the
COS, the Assistant Superintendent, SELPA’s responsibilities include:

(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)
(f)
(8)

(h)
(i)

(i)
(k)
()

(m)

(0)
(p)
(a)
(r)

Implementing regionalized services based upon annual priorities that include:
administering personnel development programs; coordinating program evaluation;
supervising data collection, information management, and reporting; supporting
curriculum development and proficiency standards; coordinating ongoing monitoring
of local plan implementation through program review; supervising and evaluating
SELPA staff; recruiting county and district personnel; and conducting child-find and
public awareness procedures.

Providing overall coordination of the local plan implementation through ongoing
program review.

Assisting in the development and coordination of master contracts with nonpublic
schools and agencies providing services to students with disabilities.

Participating in or designating appropriate personnel to participate in IEP team
meetings for students considered for placement in other local plan areas and/or
nonpublic school placements, as requested by member districts.

Providing technical assistance to local education agencies in due process and
complaint procedures.

Coordinating and facilitating establishment of local plan area standards, procedures,
processes, and regulations for the implementation of the local plan.

Acting as liaison between the local plan area and the California Department of
Education (CDE).

Applying for discretionary funds and other grants that become available to the SELPA.
Assisting in identification of special education program and service needs for the
SELPA.

Providing technical assistance to local education agency special education program
administrators.

Prepare an annual budget for the various special education resources to be submitted
to the GFC, for review and input, and COS for adoption.

Recommend employment of, supervise, evaluate and discipline SELPA personnel.
Accounting to LEAs for funds received and expended through the office, inclusive of
the regionalized services budget.

Coordinating the preparation and submission of all state mandated reports required
for the SELPA.

Resolving differences and acting as a mediator to reach consensus when differences
of opinion occur between LEA directors or superintendents.

Acting as an ex-officio member of all SELPA standing committees and appointed
special focus committees.

Meet and consult regularly with the special education directors of member LEAs,
school districts, and the county office of education

Submitting the local plan to the Solano County Superintendent of Schools for
signature, assuring coordination of the local plans within the county, in compliance
with requirements of Education Code section 56140.

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:

10

Pending Approval by COS

Page 10 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.2

Solano County Special Education Local Plan Narrative

Each local education agency governing board is responsible for approving the participation of
its LEA in this local plan for special education. Its support and recommendations are essential
to effective implementation and operation of the local plan.

Each member LEA is responsible for ensuring a full continuum of services are available in order
to provide a free and appropriate public education to all students with disabilities for whom
they are responsible. The individual LEAs shall approve any policies and procedures needed
to implement the local plan.

b) Coordinated system of identification and assessment:

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:
The role of the RLA/AU related to the coordinated system of identification and assessment is
the same as the role of each LEA.

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:
(a)  The SELPA administrator coordinates child find activities through:

(i) Annual distribution of child find materials to local childcare facilities, private
schools, medical offices, nonprofit organizations focused on serving children, and
interested parties;

(ii) staffing community events and distributing child find information;

(iii) maintaining child find information on the Solano County SELPA website; and

(iv) providing workshops on child find.

(b)  The SELPA provides technical support to LEAs and guidance to parents, as needed.

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:
Each LEA is responsible for identifying and assessing all students for whom they are
responsible including developing a system of support and referral for assessment.

¢) Coordinated system of procedural safeguards:

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:
The role of the RLA/AU related to the coordinated system of procedural safeguards is the
same as the role of each LEA.

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:
The SELPA provides alternate dispute resolution services for districts and parents. The SELPA
assists parents with filing complaints with the Office of Administrative Hearings, when
requested. The SELPA also assures procedural safeguards by providing technical assistance
and guidance on forms and procedures to LEAs in the areas of assessment, identification, and
placement. The SELPA will also provide parents with a copy of their procedural safeguards
upon request and maintain a copy on the Solano County SELPA website.

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:
The LEAs provide procedural safeguards to parents consistent with the education code, assist
parents with understanding them, and ensure that they are implemented. The LEAs assist
parents with filing complaints with the Office of Administrative Hearings, when requested.

11

Pending Approval by COS
Page 11 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.2

Solano County Special Education Local Plan Narrative

d) Coordinated system of staff development and parent and guardian education:

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:
The role of the RLA/AU related to the coordinated system of staff development and parent
and guardian education is the same as the role of each LEA.

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:
The SELPA works cooperatively with the region’s family empowerment center, a non-profit
agency to provide parent and guardian education. The SELPA administrator will provide
needed training and support as requested, or determined appropriate, for each LEA.

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:
LEAs will determine their staff development and parent and guardian education programs,
based on their local needs. They may seek technical assistance or input from the SELPA at
any time.

e) Coordinated system of curriculum development and alignment with the core curriculum:

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:
The role of the RLA/AU related to the coordinated system of curriculum development and
alignment with the core curriculum is the same as the role of each LEA.

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:
The SELPA administrator will provide technical assistance and staff development, as
requested or determined appropriate.

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:
LEAs adopt state-approved curriculum for students and determine their needs for curriculum
development and ensure any specialized curriculum is in alignment with the core curriculum.

f) Coordinated system internal program review, evaluation of the effectiveness of the local plan,
and implementation of the local plan accountability system:

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:
The role of the RLA/AU related to the coordinated system of internal program review,
evaluation of the effectiveness of the local plan, and implementation of the local plan
accountability system is the same as the role of each LEA.

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:

The SELPA administrator:

(a)  ensures the COS receives annual input on the local plan from required stakeholders,
including parents of the CAC, general and special education staff and administrators,

(b)  reports monthly to the COS in a public meeting, a summary of the SELPA’s activities
on behalf of its members,

(c)  participates in the development, implementation, and monitoring activities of LEA
improvement plans.

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:

12

Pending Approval by COS
Page 12 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.2

Solano County Special Education Local Plan Narrative

Individual LEAs review and monitor Annual Performance Reports, the California School
Dashboard, LEA Annual Determination Letters, and other data sources to ensure
students with disabilities receive a free and appropriate public education. Individual
LEAs also engage in monitoring activities as required by the CDE.

g) Coordinated system of data collection and management:

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:
The role of the RLA/AU related to the coordinated system of data collection and management
is the same as the role of each LEA.

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:
The SELPA administrator:
(a)  approves the California Longitudinal Assessment and Pupil Data System (CALPADS)
submission of each member LEA as required by the CDE,
(b)  provides technical assistance and training to LEAs,
(c)  ensurestimely collection of data for state reporting.

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:
The LEAs are responsible for data entry, quality, and integrity. The LEAs approve the CALPADS
submission as required by the CDE.

h) Coordination of interagency agreements:

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:
The role of the RLA/AU related to the coordination of interagency agreements is the same as
the role of each LEA.

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:
The SELPA administrator and partnering agencies annually review and renew interagency
agreements ensuring alignment with state and federal laws and regulations. Interagency
agreements are approved by the agency and SELPA Assistant Superintendent and posted on
the SELPA website.

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:
Through their representative to the COS, LEAs implement interagency agreements as
appropriate.

i) Coordination of services to medical facilities:

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:
The role of the RLA/AU related to the coordination of services to medical facilities is the same
as the role of each LEA.

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:
The SELPA administrator will facilitate the coordination of these services by the designated
LEAs.

13

Pending Approval by COS
Page 13 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.2

Solano County Special Education Local Plan Narrative

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:

Each LEA shall be responsible for the provision of special education and related services to
students with disabilities residing in hospitals and other residential medical facilities located
within the geographical area of the LEA. Each LEA shall first consider services operated by the
LEA, and regionalized program providers. If the special education services available within
these entities are not appropriate, then the district shall contract with an appropriate service
provider for implementation of the student’s IEP. These may include employees of other LEAs
within the SELPA, those of a neighboring SELPA, or a Nonpublic Agency (NPA).

j)  Coordination of services to licensed children's institutions (LCIs) and foster family homes:

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:
The role of the RLA/AU related to the coordination of services to LCls and foster family homes
is the same as the role of each LEA.

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:
The SELPA administrator facilitates the coordination of these services by the designated LEAs.

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:
Each LEA shall be responsible for the provision of special education and related services to
students with disabilities residing in LCls and foster homes located within the geographical
area of the LEA. Each LEA shall first consider services operated by the LEA and then by SELPA
centralized and/or regionalized providers. If the special education services available within
the entities are not appropriate, then the district shall contract with an appropriate NPA
service provider for implementation of the pupil's IEP.

k) Preparation and transmission of required special education local plan area reports:

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:
The role of the RLA/AU related to the preparation and transmission of required special
education local plan area reports is the same as the role of each LEA.

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:
The SELPA administrator will ensure timely transmission of required reports and provide
technical assistance to LEAs in completing those reports.

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:
Individual LEAs will maintain accurate records and submit required data for the SELPA to
submit timely reports.

[) Fiscal and logistical support of the CAC:

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:
The role of the RLA/AU related to the fiscal and logistical support of the CAC is the same as
the role of each LEA.

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:
The SELPA administrator:

14

Pending Approval by COS
Page 14 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.2

Solano County Special Education Local Plan Narrative

(a)  provides logistical support to the CAC, and
(b)  ensures the local plan is reviewed by the CAC

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:
Voting members are appointed by local governing boards to the CAC.

m) Coordination of transportation services for individuals with exceptional needs:

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:
The responsibility for coordination of transportation is not the responsibility of the RLA/AU.
If the RLA/AU provides transportation, it is unrelated to the role of that LEA as the RLA/AU.

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:
The SELPA will provide technical assistance as requested.

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:
Individual LEAs ensure that appropriate transportation services are provided for students with
disabilities as specified in their individualized education program. The Solano COE provides
transportation, to the extent possible, for students attending programs outside of the
geographic boundaries of the SELPA. In the event the Solano COE does not provide
transportation, the responsibility for transportation is assigned to the District of Special
Education Accountability (DSEA).

n) Coordination of career and vocational education and transition services:

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:
The role of the RLA/AU related to the coordination of career and vocational education and
transition services is the same as the role of each LEA.

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:
The SELPA administrator will provide technical assistance and staff development as needed.

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:
Each LEA will provide appropriate career and vocational education and transition services as
required under state and federal law.

o) Assurance of full educational opportunity:

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:
The role of the RLA/AU related to the assurance of full educational opportunity is the same
as the role of each LEA.

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:
Through approval of the Annual Service Plan, the SELPA will ensure that the full continuum
of services is available. The SELPA monitors compliance reviews and assists, as requested, in
the development of corrective action plans. Additionally, professional development and
technical assistance are provided to LEAs and nonpublic schools.

15

Pending Approval by COS
Page 15 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.2

Solano County Special Education Local Plan Narrative

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:

The individual LEAs:

(a)  monitor student’s IEP to ensure that all services documented are provided, without
delay, and at no cost to the parent;

(b)  regularly review and monitor special education data to ensure services and annual
and triennial IEPs are implemented and reviewed per mandated timeframes, and

(c)  through the IEP process, review the special education services provided to students to
ensure adequate yearly progress is occurring.

p) Fiscal administration and the allocation of state and federal funds pursuant to EC Section
56836.01—The SELPA Administrator's responsibility for the fiscal administration of the annual
budget plan; the allocation of state and federal funds; and the reporting and accounting of special
education funding.

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:
The role of the RLA/AU, in coordination with the SELPA, is responsible for receiving and
distributing state and federal funds to individual LEAs in accordance with the adopted budget.

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:
The SELPA administrator will facilitate the distribution of funds in accordance with the funding
allocation plan approved by the COS. The SELPA Administrator also ensures the development
of the Annual Budget Plan.

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:
Individual LEAs determine and approve the allocation of state and federal funds. Each LEA
timely submits required fiscal reports to the SELPA for required by state and federal reporting.

g) Direct instructional program support that may be provided by program specialists in accordance
with EC Section 56368:

(1) Role of the RLA/AU:
The role of the RLA/AU related to direct instructional program support that may be provided
by program specialists is the same as the role of each LEA.

(2) Role of the SELPA Administrator:

The SELPA Administrator:

(a)  coordinates and provides staff development and training for general and special
education administrators and staff,

(b)  develops and disseminates forms, policies, and procedures throughout the SELPA,
and

(c)  assists in preparation, implementation, and follow-up of state reviews, including
those that are part of the Compliance and Improvement Monitoring (CIM) process.

(3) Role of the individual LEAs:
Individual LEAs are responsible for:
(a)  planning, directing, coordinating, and evaluating instructional programs
(b)  identifying needs and developing short and long-range plans for staff development,
curriculum development, and program effectiveness.

16

Pending Approval by COS
Page 16 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.2

Solano County Special Education Local Plan Narrative

(c)  providing staff development and training for general and special education
administrators and staff.

(d)  developing and disseminating forms, policies, and procedures consistent with LEA
policies.

(e) representing the LEA on committees as directed.

(f) assuring appropriate coordination of general and special education instructional
resources for students.

(g)  providing support to the LEA in the area of positive behavior intervention.

(h)  assisting in the preparation, implementation, and follow-up of reviews by the state
including those that are part of the Compliance and Improvement Monitoring (CIM)
process.

D. Roles and Responsibilities of Participating Entities

D1. Administrative Unit
Participating LEAs, through the Council of Superintendents, designate the AU for the SELPA. The Solano
County Office of Education (SCOE) is the AU, as designated by the participating districts in the Local Plan
for Special Education in Solano County. SCOE functions as a local education agency and has status equal
to other local education agency district program operations.

D2. Local Educational Agency
The local boards are responsible for the approval of district budgets, hiring of personnel for their
districts, and setting policy. Each memberdistrict prepares its own budget and is responsible for the
hiring of district personnel. The County Board of Education is responsible for approval of the County
Superintendent’s budget. The Solano County Superintendent of Schools is responsible for the hiring of
County Office of Education personnel and setting Solano County Office of Education policy. In
consultation with the Governance and Finance Committee, the Assistant Superintendent, SELPA
develops the SELPA budget, and the Council of Superintendents reviews, amends, and approves the
budget.

Each district board approves programs to be operated within its jurisdiction. The Solano County Office
of Education establishes and maintains special education programs and services that are most
effectively provided by the Superintendent's office, as determined by the COS and as specified in the
annual budget and service plans. The Office of the County Superintendent functions as an LEA and has
status equal to other LEA district program operations.

Each district board appoints members to the CAC.

Board policy of each LEA member of the Solano County SELPA Local Plan shall indicate that the LEA is
responsible for educating students with disabilities in the least restrictive environment. Students with
disabilities are served in their home districts whenever the needs identified in the individualized
education program can be met in the home district. However, it is recognized that some students with
disabilities have unique educational needs that cannot be met in their home districts. Because of such
identified unique needs, some students receive services from other districts or the Solano County Office
of Education. The local plan serves as the contractual agreement for students with disabilities placed in
regional programs. LEA responsibilities include:

a) Coordinating and conducting child find activities.

17

Pending Approval by COS
Page 17 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.2

Solano County Special Education Local Plan Narrative

h)

Developing and providing programs and services for all eligible students residing in the district
and for students at private schools located in the district.

Identifying and serving students in medical, foster, or LCl facilities.

Participating in state/district-wide assessments.

Operating all special education programs and services in accordance with state and federal laws
and regulations.

Responding to compliance and due process complaints and implementing the decisions of
compliance investigations or due process hearings.

Utilizing the same management information system, forms, procedures and guidelines as all
other districts within the SELPA.

Collecting and completing state and federal report requirements; including California
Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System (CALPADS) reports and compliance reviews.

D3. LEA Governing Boards

The local governing boards of member school districts and the Solano County Superintendent of Schools
responsibilities include:

a)

b)
c)

d)

Adoption of policies and procedures for special education programs and services within their
districts.

LEA compliance with all elements of the local plan.
Input on SELPA policies and procedures through the superintendent of the LEA.

Appointment of individuals to the CAC.

DA4. LEA Superintendents

The district superintendents are responsible to their respective Boards of Education. The district
superintendents and county superintendent of schools serve on the Council of Superintendents and
assist in the development and approval of policies for the operation of the Solano County SELPA.

Local superintendents are responsible for preparing their special education budgets and for the
operation of programs and services within their districts, as well as maintenance and operation of the
facilities housing special education programs and services.

Responsibilities of the LEA superintendent in the implementation of the plan include the following:

a)
b)
c)

d)
e)

f)
g)

appoint administrators to represent the LEA and serve on SELPA organized committees;
advising their respective agencies on policy development;

collecting information on program operations and reporting that information to the Assistant
Superintendent, SELPA;

designate an individual to participate in the recruiting, screening, and interviewing process for
SELPA staff who have a local plan area function;

managing and operating LEA programs and services;

providing mutual technical assistance in due process and complaint procedures;

participating in establishing local plan area standards, procedures, and processes for
implementation of the local plan; and

18

Pending Approval by COS

Page 18 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.2

Solano County Special Education Local Plan Narrative

h) assisting in the identification of special education program and service needs for the SELPA.

Each LEA shares in a cooperative effort to provide for the special education needs of all students with
disabilities within this SELPA.

D5. LEA Special Education Administrators
The directors of special education are responsible for the primary operation of programs and services
associated with special education within their respective LEAs. They provide assessment, instructional
planning, placement, and review of students through IEP teams. They ensure that all eligible students
have entry into special education programs as well as exit from programs within their geographic or
program responsibility areas.

The directors assess the need for professional learning, special education program development, and
regional programs. The administrators facilitate the collection and aggregation of data by providing
accurate and timely information to the local plan area regarding student assessment, placement,
identifying data, student movement, and progress.

E. Federal Assurances

E1l. Free Appropriate Public Education 20 United States Code (USC) Section (§)
1412 (a)(1)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that a free appropriate public education is available to all
children residing in the LEA between the ages of three through 21 inclusive, including students with
disabilities who have been suspended or expelled from school.

E2. Full Educational Opportunity 20 USC § 1412 (a)(2)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that all pupils with disabilities have access to educational
programs, nonacademic programs, and services available to non-disabled pupils.

E3. Child Find 20 USC § 1412 (a)(3)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that all children with disabilities residing in the State,
including children with disabilities who are homeless or are wards of the State and children attending
private schools, regardless of the severity of their disabilities, and who are in need of special education
and related services are identified, located and evaluated. A practical method is developed and
implemented to determine which students with disabilities are currently receiving needed special
education and related services.

E4. Individualized Education Program and Individualized Family Service Plan
20 USC § 1412 (a)(4)

It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that an Individualized Education Program (IEP) or an
Individualized Family Service Plan (IFSP) is developed, reviewed and revised for each child with a
disability who requires special education and related services in order to benefit from his/her
individualized education program. It shall be the policy of this LEA that a review of an IEP will be
conducted on at least an annual basis to review a student’s progress and make appropriate revisions.

19

Pending Approval by COS
Page 19 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.2

Solano County Special Education Local Plan Narrative

E5. Least Restrictive Environment 20 USC § 1412 (a)(5)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that to the maximum extent appropriate, children with
disabilities, including children in public or private institutions or other care facilities, are educated with
children who are not disabled. Special class, separate schooling, or other removal of a student with
disabilities from the general educational environment, occurs only when the nature or severity of the
disability of the student is such that education in general classes with the use of supplemental aids and
services cannot be achieved satisfactorily.

E6. Procedural Safeguards 20 USC § 1412 (a)(6)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that children with disabilities and their parents shall be
afforded all procedural safeguards throughout the provision of a free appropriate public education
including the identification, evaluation, and placement process.

E7. Evaluation 20 USC § 1412 (a)(7)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that a reassessment of a student with a disability shall be
conducted at least once every three years or more frequently, if appropriate.

ES. Confidentiality 20 USC § 1412 (a)(8)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that the confidentiality of personally identifiable data
information and records maintained by the LEA relating to children with disabilities and their parents
and families shall be protected pursuant to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA).

E9. Part C, Transition 20 USC § 1412 (a)(9)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that a transition process for a child who is participating in
Early Intervention Programs (IDEA, Part C) with an IFSP is begun prior to a toddler’s third birthday. The
transition process shall be smooth, timely and effective for the child and family.

E10. Private Schools 20 USC § 1412 (a)(10)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA to assure that children with disabilities voluntarily enrolled
by their parents in private schools shall receive appropriate special education and related services
pursuant to LEA coordinated procedures. The proportionate amount of federal funds will be allocated
for the purpose of providing special education services to children with disabilities voluntarily enrolled in
private school by their parents.

E11l. Local Compliance Assurances 20 USC § 1412 (a)(11)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that the local plan shall be adopted by the appropriate
local board(s) (district/county) and is the basis for the operation and administration of special education
programs; and that the agency(ies) herein represented will meet all applicable requirements of state
and federal laws and regulations, including compliance with the Individuals with Disabilities Education
Act (IDEA), the Federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 504 of Public Law and the provisions of the
California Education Code, Part 30.

E12. Interagency 20 USC § 1412 (a)(12)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that interagency agreements or other mechanisms for
interagency coordination are in effect to ensure services required for FAPE are provided, including the
continuation of services during an interagency dispute resolution process.

20

Pending Approval by COS
Page 20 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.2

Solano County Special Education Local Plan Narrative

E13. Governance 20 USC § 1412 (a)(13)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA to support and comply with the provisions of the
governance bodies and any necessary administrative support to implement the local plan. A final
determination that an LEA is not eligible for assistance under this part will not be made without first
affording that LEA with reasonable notice and an opportunity for a hearing through the State
Educational Agency.

E14. Personnel Qualifications 20 USC § 1412 (a)(14)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA to ensure that personnel providing special education
related services meet the highly qualified requirements as defined under federal law, including that
those personnel have the content knowledge and skills to serve children with disabilities. This policy
shall not be construed to create a right of action on behalf of an individual student for the failure of a
particular LEA staff person to be highly qualified or to prevent a parent from filing a State complaint with
the California Department of Education (CDE) about staff qualifications.

E15. Performance Goals and Indicators 20 USC § 1412 (a)(15)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA to comply with the requirements of the performance goals
and indicators developed by the CDE and provide data as required by the CDE.

E16. Participation in Assessments 20 USC § 1412 (a)(16)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that all students with disabilities shall participate in state
and district-wide assessment programs. The IEP team determines how a student will access assessments
with or without accommodations, or access alternate assessments, consistent with state standards
governing such determinations.

E17. Supplementation of State/Federal Funds 20 USC § 1412 (a)(17)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA to provide assurances that funds received from Part B of
the IDEA will be expended in accordance with the applicable provisions of the IDEA; will be used to
supplement and not to supplant state, local and other Federal funds.

E18. Maintenance of Effort 20 USC § 1412 (a)(18)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that federal funds will not be used to reduce the level of
local funds and/or combined level of local and state funds expended for the education of children with
disabilities except as provided in Federal law and regulations.

E19. Public Participation 20 USC § 1412 (a)(19)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that public hearings, adequate notice of the hearings, and
an opportunity for comment available to the general public, including individuals with disabilities and
parents of children with disabilities are held prior to the adoption of any policies and/or regulations
needed to comply with Part B of the IDEA.

E20. Rule of Construction 20 USC § 1412 (a)(20)
(Federal requirement for State Education Agency only.)

E21. State Advisory Panel 20 USC § 1412 (a)(21)
(Federal requirement for State Education Agency only.)

21

Pending Approval by COS
Page 21 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.2

Solano County Special Education Local Plan Narrative

E22. Suspension/Expulsion 20 USC § 1412 (a)(22)
The LEAs assure that data on suspension and expulsion rates will be provided in a manner prescribed by
the CDE. When indicated by data analysis, the LEA further assures that policies, procedures and
practices related to the development and implementation of the IEPs will be revised.

E23. Access to Instructional Materials 20 USC § 1412 (a)(23)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA to provide instructional materials to blind students or
other students with print disabilities in a timely manner according to the state adopted National
Instructional Materials Accessibility Standard.

E24. Overidentification and Disproportionality 20 USC § 1412 (a)(24)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA to prevent the inappropriate disproportionate
representation by race and ethnicity of students with disabilities.

E25. Prohibition on Mandatory Medicine 20 USC § 1412 (a)(25)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA to prohibit school personnel from requiring a student to
obtain a prescription for a substance covered by the Controlled Substances Act as a condition of
attending school or receiving a special education assessment and/or services.

E26. Distribution of Funds 20 USC § 1411(e),(f)(1-3)
(Federal requirement for State Education Agency only.)

E27. Data 20 USC § 1418 (a-d)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA to provide data or information to the CDE that may be
required by regulations.

E28. Reading Literacy (State Board Requirement, 2/99)
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that in order to improve the educational results for
students with disabilities, Special Education Local Plan Areas (SELPA) local plans shall include specific
information to ensure that all students who require special education will participate in the California
Reading Initiative.

E29. Charter Schools (EC 56207.5 (a-c))
It shall be the policy of each LEA in the SELPA that a request by a charter school to participate as a local
educational agency in a special education local plan area may not be treated differently from a similar
request made by a school district.

F. Additional Elements of the Local Plan

F1. Allocation Plan and Maintenance of Effort
Districts and the County Office of Education acknowledge the obligation to maintain the level of general
fund contribution towards the provision of special education services at a level equal to or greater than
of the prior year, noting the limited exceptions to maintenance of effort provided for in state and
federal law.

State Special Education Revenue and Federal Local Assistance Grant funds are distributed on an Average
Daily Attendance (ADA) basis, after regionalized services are funded first. These services include partial
funding for county-operated programs, SELPA office operations, pooled funds for a variety of purposes
including, legal defense, legal education, etc. All direct allocations to districts are distributed

22
Pending Approval by COS
Page 22 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.2

Solano County Special Education Local Plan Narrative

proportionally, based on ADA. All property taxes allocated to the SELPA are used to partially fund
county-operated special education programs.

Infant Discretionary funds are allocated pursuant to applicable state and federal laws, and are used to
fund regionalized, county-operated special education programs for students with severe disabilities.

Preschool local assistance funds are also allocated pursuant to applicable state and federal laws, and are
used to fund district-operated, preschool special education programs for students with mild and
moderate disabilities.

Revenue subject to the SELPA allocation model includes the following:

a) IDEA Basic Local Assistance Entitlement, Part B (RS 3310),

b) IDEA Local Preschool Grant, Part B (RS 3315)

c) IDEA Early Intervention Grants, also referred to as Part C, Early Start (RS 3385)
d) IDEA Preschool Staff Development, Part B, (RS 3345)

e) IDEA Alternative Dispute Resolution (RS 3395)

f) State Special Education, also referred to as AB 602, (RS 6500)

g) State Special Education: Infant Discretionary Funds (RS 6515)

Age 0-3 years, Infant/Toddler Funds

Infant special education funds, including RS 3385 and RS 6515, are transferred to the Solano County
Office of Education to operate the Early Start (age 0-3 years) special education program.

Age 3-22 years, School Age Funds

After regionalized services are funded, State and Federal special education funds, including RS 3310, RS
3315, RS 3345, RS 3395, RS 6500 and RS 6512, are allocated based upon prior year Average Daily
Attendance (ADA).

Regionalized operations and services, funded prior to distribution of revenue apportioned for 3-22-year-
old students, include:

a) Extensive Support Needs (ESN) program,
i) Funding for the ESN program includes all related services, except transportation.
ii) Revenue for the ESN program shall include:
(1) LCFF (general education funds) blended rate generated by the pupils in the ESN
program;
(2) lottery funds, based upon the January Governor's budget proposal, generated by the
pupils in the ESN program;
(3) property taxes, which are an offset to the AB 602 allocation, are used to partially fund
the ESN programs to reduce the state revenue apportioned to fund the ESN program.
These funds shall be prorated based upon enrollment to the LEAs operating the ESN;
and
(4) state and federal special education funds.
iii) LEAs operating an ESN program shall annually submit a proposed budget to the COS in
accordance with the annually approved budget development calendar.
b) Deaf Hard-of-Hearing (DHH) program
c) SCOE-provided mental health services in the Juvenile Detention Facility

23

Pending Approval by COS
Page 23 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.2

Solano County Special Education Local Plan Narrative

d) SELPA operations and services, as directed by the COS annually, including but not limited to:
i) the SELPA office and SELPA personnel,
ii) funds for California Children’s Services equipment, rent, and utilities
iii) special education database contract,
iv) low incidence revenue, and
v) staff development funds.
e) Pooled resources, at an amount determined annually by the COS, including but not limited to
the following:
i) Legal Education
ii) Legal Defense
iii) Residential Placement

F2. Monitoring the use of State and Federal Funds
Each LEA is independently audited annually.

For the purpose of reviewing and submitting mandatory reports, including the Excess Cost Calculation,
Special Education Maintenance of Effort — Actual, and Special Education Maintenance of Effort - Budget,
the SELPA annually collects and aggregates LEA special education financial data. SELPA aggregates data
for federal grants, including calculation of proportionate share.

F3. Annual Budget Plan
The SELPA shall adopt an annual budget plan at a public hearing scheduled at a COS meeting in
compliance with all legal mandates. The annual budget plan shall identify expected income and
expenditures as required by state and federal laws.

F4. Annual Service Plan
The SELPA shall adopt an annual service plan at a public hearing scheduled at a COS meeting in
compliance with all legal mandates. The service plan provides an overview of the programs and services
available within the SELPA.

F5. Programs for Early Childhood Special Education
A collaborative between North Bay California Regional Center, Early Head Start, California Children’s
Services, and Warmline Family Resource Center ensures services to infants and their families. For a
listing of programs for early childhood special education programs and services for children aged three
through five years of age, see the Annual Service Plan.

F6. Oversight of Nonpublic School Placements
Each LEA, including the Solano County SELPA, where appropriate, that contracts with a nonpublic,
nonsectarian school shall evaluate the placement of its pupil(s) in such schools on at least an annual
basis as part of the annual IEP review. The LEA representative shall review the master contract, the
individual services agreement, and the IEP to ensure that all services agreed upon and specified in the
IEP are provided.

Nonpublic, nonsectarian schools are required by the master contract and the IEP to annually evaluate
the pupil to determine if they are making appropriate educational progress. The LEA representative shall
collaboratively review with the nonpublic, nonsectarian school the evaluations conducted by the
nonpublic, nonsectarian school to ensure that they were appropriate and valid for measuring pupil

24

Pending Approval by COS
Page 24 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.2

Solano County Special Education Local Plan Narrative

progress. The LEA may choose to administer additional assessments as necessary, with parent consent
where required, to determine whether the pupil is making adequate educational progress.

F7. Utilization of General Education Resources
Each LEA shall ensure that a pupil is referred for special educational instruction and services only after
the resources of the general education program have been considered and, as appropriate, utilized.
Such resources may include, but not be limited to, response to intervention models, student success
teams, early literacy programs, and remedial programs. The LEA shall ensure that evaluations of
children suspected of having a disability are not delayed or denied because of the implementation of
intervention strategies.

F8. Access to Core Curriculum
Each LEA shall ensure that students with disabilities will have access to required core curriculum,
including state-adopted core curriculum and supplementary materials.

Fo. Services to Incarcerated Adult Students
Enrollment and Intake Procedures

Students who were found eligible for special education services prior to incarceration in the Solano
County Detention Center, shall be identified by the Solano County Sheriff, the adult student or the adult
student's appointed representative. Upon referral from the Solano County Sheriff, the Solano County
SELPA shall ensure the provision of special education services for incarcerated adult students who
remain eligible for such services, and

a) whose parent or conservator currently resides within the Solano County SELPA's boundaries; or

b) whose parents resided within the Solano County SELPA's boundaries when the incarcerated adult
student turned 18, and who remain residents of the SELPA.

Responsible Agency

It shall be the responsibility of the DSEA to provide services to the identified individual in the Solano
County Detention Center, or the SCOE, on behalf of the responsible district, may provide services at the
Solano County Detention Center. If the Solano SELPA is not the responsible SELPA for an incarcerated
adult student identified by the Sheriff, the Solano SELPA shall make every effort to identify and contact
the responsible district/SELPA.

F10. Low Incidence Funds
Funds for low incidence equipment, materials, and supplies as well as for low incidence services are
intended to support students in the following disability categories: hard-of-hearing, deaf, visual
disability, severely orthopedically impaired, and deaf-blind. The funds are administered through the
Solano County SELPA as specified in the Solano County SELPA Procedural Manual and include receipt of
funds, expenditure of funds, and development of procedures for exchange of equipment.

F11. Request for SELPA Membership by a Charter School
A request by a charter school to participate as an LEA in the Solano County SELPA will not be treated
differently from a similar request made by a school district. Procedures related to charter school
participation in the Solano County Local Plan are specified in the Solano County SELPA Procedural
Manual.

25

Pending Approval by COS
Page 25 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.2

Solano County Special Education Local Plan Narrative

In reviewing and approving a request by a charter school to participate as a local educational agency in a
special education local plan area, the following requirements shall apply:

a) The special education local plan area shall comply with Section 56140.

b) The charter school shall participate in state and federal funding for special education and the
allocation plan developed pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 56195.7 or Section 56836.05 in
the same manner as other local educational agencies of the special education local plan area.

c) The charter school shall participate in governance of the special education local plan area in the
same manner as other local educational agencies of the special education local plan area.

G. Policies, Procedures, and Local Agreements

SELPA policies, procedures, and local agreements necessary to support the implementation of the local
plan, and as required by legal mandates, have been developed and are available upon request. These
documents are available on the Solano SELPA website.

G1. Interagency Agreements

Interagency agreements necessary to support the implementation of the local plan, and as required by
legal mandates, have been developed with the following agencies:

a) Solano County Health & Human Services/California Children’s Services

b) North Bay Regional Center — Part C

c) North Bay Regional Center — Part B

d) Matrix Parent Network

e) Child Start, Inc.

f)  Multi-SELPA Agreement to operate programs for students who are Deaf / Hard-of-Hearing

G2. Public Addressing the Governing Body
Members of the public, including parents or guardians of students with disabilities, may address
guestions or concerns, in-person at public meetings or in writing, to the governing boards of each LEA,
the Council of Superintendents, the Governance and Finance Committee and/or the Community
Advisory Committee.

G3. Dispute Resolution
The process for mediation at the COS level is as follows: The chairperson of the COS mediates the
differences between the participating districts. If the chairperson is a party to the disagreement, an
impartial superintendent participates in the mediation process. When resolution cannot be reached, a
three-person panel composed of the Assistant Superintendent, SELPA; the chairperson of the COS; and a
special education director selected by the COS serve as the final arbitrators. If any of these individuals
are party to the disagreement, the group at large selects an impartial individual from each of these
groups.

In the event a dispute involves multiple members LEAs, rendering it not feasible or practicable to form a
mediating committee, the COS may direct the Assistant Superintendent, SELPA to engage a neutral third
party to provide the mediation.

G4. Legal References
Federal Requirements: 20 USC 1412 (a), 20 USC 1413 (a) (1), 20 USC 1413 (a) (5) 9

26
Pending Approval by COS
Page 26 of 27



Return to Agenda SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Item 6.1.2

Solano County Special Education Local Plan Narrative

State Requirements: EC 56001 (f) 1, 56190-56194 6, 56195.1 (b) (c) 5, 56195.3 2, 56195.9 3, 56025 (a)
(12) 4, 56205 (b) (4) 8, 56205 (b) (5) 7, 47640-47647 10, 56195.1, 56203, 56207.5

27

Pending Approval by COS
Page 27 of 27



SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025
Iltem 6.2

Return to Agenda

Extensive Support Needs (ESN)
Program Transfer Dashboard

Notification from Vacaville USD.

CLICK HERE

Notice to SCOE Superintendent of Schools
and Vacaville USD Superintendent
regarding the option to dispute.

CLICKHERE

Notice to parents/guardians regarding
program transfer.

CLICKHERE

Notice to Solano COE employees
regarding program transfer.

CLICK HERE

Seven-point plan, as required by Education
Code § 56207(a).

CLICKHERE

To provide input regarding the program transfer by email:

CLICK HERE

To provide input in person:

Staff: Governance and Finance Committee
e 9:00 AM-11:00 AM
o October 15, 2025
o November 19, 2025

Parents: Community Advisory Committee
e 12:00 PM - 1:00 PM
o October 16, 2025
o November 20, 2025

Location: Solano County Office of Education, 5100 Business Center Drive, Fairfield, CA



https://drive.google.com/file/d/15RMUci5KnINhpt3ea_Dp6R7JkSAN22ZY/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1e9CGwehTvV6epIicqS24wbSkP9cdJfKO/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1AkFK1INizJqpod-lMMLMEgpNvFQ7qlJU/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/12oVWSHInrw_t3Lpo8k8v2TG-2Vg_JyZF/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1W33NFV6mfPTtvwmSLdy18vfbRj71pZ5l/view?usp=drive_link
mailto:ProgramTransferInput@SolanoCountySELPA.net?subject=Program%20Transfer%20Input

Solano County Office of Education Special Education

2025/2026 Proposed Budget

Program Location

SELPA Governance and Finance Committee 10/15/2025

Vacaville Unified School District

Item 6.2
Return to Agenda

Category Total FTE TOTAL
Instructional Program:
Teacher 791,521 8.00
Paraeducator 1,311,901 31.57
Educational Interpreter - -
Benefits 1,251,202
Books & Supplies 11,200
Services and Other Operating 3,200
Total Instruction 3,369,024 39.57
Direct Administration:
Administrator 86,633 0.53
Clerical 30,407 0.53
Benefits 39,361
Total Direct Administration: 156,401 1.05
Related Services (salary & benefits):
Psychologist 121,284 0.71
Occupational Therapy 207,008 1.13
Health and Nursing (LVN) 164,650 2.00
Speech/Language 293,569 1.82
Behavior 277,970 1.88
College and Career - -
Total Related Services 1,064,481 7.55
5% Indirect 229,489
Total: 4,819,395 48.17
Estimated enrollment: 70
Potential
Positions: Charged Adjustments
Teacher 8.00 8.00
Paraeducator 37.00 37.00
Administrator 0.53 0.50
Clerical 0.53 0.50
Psychologist 0.71 0.45
Occupational Therapy 1.13 1.00
Health and Nursing (LVN) 2.00 2.00
Speech/Language 1.82 2.00
Behavior Analyst 0.51 -
Behavior Tech 1.37 2.00
Approx decrease to SCOE SpEd
Classroom Budget 4,819,395
Subs, ESY, Extra hours (centralized) 370,000
Outside services (APE, O&M) 100,000
Reserve 158,682

Total

5,448,077

reduce .35 + assign other position to
mental health services currently
timecarded - 10%



	Button1: 


